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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good morning.

          3  Welcome, all of you, on this nice sunny day. My name

          4  is Madeline Provenzano, and I chair the Committee on

          5  Housing and Buildings. This is the Committee's first

          6  hearing on Intro. No. 380, although Melinda has

          7  really been a pain in the you know what, she's a

          8  good friend, and a good Councilwoman, and actually

          9  I'm kind of looking forward to this hearing.

         10                 I've had many, many, many hearings

         11  and many, many hours on lead in this Committee, so

         12  I'm looking forward to talking about pets today.

         13                 This bill would amend Section

         14  27.009.1 of the Administrative Code of the City of

         15  New York, by clarifying the rights of pet owners and

         16  multiple dwellings, such that when a no pet

         17  provision in a tenant's lease is waived, it is

         18  waived for the duration of the tenants occupancy,

         19  and not the life of a pet.

         20                 Intro. No. 380 would also prohibit a

         21  landlord from evicting or denying occupancy to an

         22  individual 62 years of age or older, from a multiple

         23  dwelling solely on the grounds that they have or

         24  will have a household pet.

         25                 Section 27.2009.1 of the
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          2  Administrative Code was enacted by Local Law 52 for

          3  the year 1983, and provides that where a tenant in a

          4  multiple dwelling harbors or has harbored a

          5  household pet or pets "openly and notoriously" for a

          6  period of three months or more after taking

          7  possession of a dwelling unit, and the owner or his

          8  or her agent has knowledge of this fact and fails

          9  within such three-month period to commence a summary

         10  proceeding or action to enforce a lease provision

         11  prohibiting the keeping of such pets, then such

         12  lease provision shall be deemed waived. The issue is

         13  whether a "no pet" clause can be revived in the

         14  future after it is waived. But I'm sure most of you

         15  know this legislation a whole lot better than I do.

         16  Although I should, by now my office has gotten many

         17  phone calls, many letters, all of which were duly

         18  noted and all names and addresses taken. There is no

         19  explicit provision in the law for the revival or

         20  resumption of a no pet clause once it is waived.

         21  However, tenants whose pets cause damage, create a

         22  nuisance, or substantially interfere with the

         23  health, safety, welfare of other occupants, are not

         24  protected under the current law or Intro. No. 380.

         25                 The current law also expressly states
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          2  that its provisions do not apply to the New York

          3  City Housing Authority.

          4                 Supporters of Intro. No. 380 believe

          5  this legislation is necessary to clarify the rights

          6  of pet owners due to inconsistent court

          7  interpretations of Local Law 52.

          8                 Intro. No. 380 would also prohibit a

          9  landlord from evicting or denying occupancy to a

         10  senior citizen solely on the grounds that they have

         11  or will have a household pet, even if their lease

         12  contains a no pet clause.

         13                 Supporters of the bill believe there

         14  are many reasons for granting seniors this right.

         15                 I'm just going to request that

         16  everyone here please try to respect the opinions of

         17  others, whether you agree with them or not, and I'm

         18  also asking that speakers limit their testimony to

         19  three minutes. We have several pages of folks that

         20  want to testify, so that will help speed things

         21  along. And if you have not and you wish to testify,

         22  you must sign in with the sergeant at arms and fill

         23  out one of these little sheets.

         24                 I thank you. I was just going to say

         25  I didn't have any Committee members, but I do.
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          2  Council Member James Oddo, of course Councilwoman

          3  Melinda Katz, and hopefully we'll be joined by

          4  others.

          5                 Melinda is the sponsor of the

          6  legislation, as you all know, so we'll have her say

          7  a few words. Three-minute rule applies to you, too,

          8  Melinda. You realize that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good morning,

         10  everyone. And I want to thank you for coming out

         11  here and showing how important this piece of

         12  legislation is. There's a lot of folks that brought

         13  us to this day.

         14                 I'd like to thank the Chair, Madeline

         15  Provenzano, she truly -- I have been a pain in the

         16  neck and I want to thank her for her patience, and

         17  to be honest about it, she was actually very open

         18  and welcome to the idea of hearing the issue out and

         19  looking to all sides of the issue so that we can

         20  move forward and try to gain some sort of peaceful,

         21  meaningful legislation, as we move onto the future

         22  of this.

         23                 I would like to note for the record

         24  that we have over 600 people who have e-mailed,

         25  phoned, visited and called and addressed letters to
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          2  my office in support of this legislation.

          3                 In addition to the many stars and

          4  household names that have put their support behind

          5  this bill, including folks you'll hear from this

          6  morning, Bernadette Peters will be at the press

          7  conference hopefully by 12:30, but Rue McClanahan,

          8  who has given I know me years of pleasure and Peter

          9  Max and Mary, his wife, who really was intricate in

         10  making sure all these folks come, I want to thank

         11  them. But just to note for a second the importance

         12  of this legislation, I believe this legislation is

         13  extremely important because animals obviously become

         14  part of our lives, they become part of who we are,

         15  they become part of our children's lives, of our

         16  parent's lives, and the idea that when one pet is

         17  gone or dies and you may not be able to replace it,

         18  obviously causes a lot of folks a lot of heartache

         19  that just is not necessary.

         20                 I would like to note for the record,

         21  the chair noted it, but I'd like to also note it

         22  again, right now the law is, if you have a pet open

         23  and notoriously for three months, and the landlord

         24  does not enforce the provision, you won't be able to

         25  keep that pet.
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          2                 We are talking about replacing that

          3  pet. We are talking about the fact that that pet may

          4  not live as long as you do, God willing, and that

          5  you are able to replace it after it's gone.

          6                 So, I just sort of wanted to put in

          7  context the hearing today, and once again thank the

          8  Chair and everyone who has come out in support.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         10  Councilwoman.

         11                 We've also been joined by Councilman

         12  Tony Avella.

         13                 We've had a tough time figuring out

         14  how we were going to do this, but I think I'm going

         15  to allow, and I think all of you will agree, if you

         16  don't, tough. But I think we're going to allow the

         17  Humane Society, which pretty much put this bill

         18  together, also some of the stars that we have, we'll

         19  try and get those folks on first, and ask them to

         20  kindly adhere to the three-minute limit and, see,

         21  they probably don't know how I conduct my hearings,

         22  but the rest of you do, and then after that, when we

         23  have all of these other folks, we'll actually put on

         24  the clock, but I won't put on the clock today. But

         25  we have a big hook that we use when we don't put on
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          2  the clock.

          3                 First we have Elinor Molbegott, and

          4  Sandra Defao. They're from the Humane Society of New

          5  York.

          6                 Okay, you can start when you're

          7  ready. Make sure you introduce yourself.

          8                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: My name is Elinor

          9  Molbegott, I'm legal counsel to the Humane Society

         10  of New York. And to my left here is Sandra Defao,

         11  who is Co-Executive Director of Humane Society, who

         12  is available to answer any questions.

         13                 I'm going to read a prepared

         14  statement to make sure that all of the points I've

         15  prepared are going to be noted.

         16                 The Humane Society of New York

         17  appreciates the opportunity to testify before you

         18  today, in support of Intro. No. 380.

         19                 We consider Intro. No. 380 to be

         20  important humane legislation for the people and

         21  animals of our City.

         22                 More than 20 years ago today, or this

         23  year, I sat before this Council's Housing and

         24  Buildings Committee in support of legislation to

         25  provide for a waiver of no pet lease clauses when
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          2  landlords fail to act expeditiously to enforce these

          3  clauses.

          4                 Thankfully, that legislation was

          5  enacted. Its stated purpose was to prevent hardship

          6  and dislocation of tenants. One of the most eloquent

          7  speakers in support of that legislation was Edna

          8  Lenet, an 86-year-old woman who had lived in her

          9  apartment for more than 40 years. Throughout this

         10  time she always had dogs. She said they were her

         11  only campanions. Yet, after 40 years her landlord

         12  commenced a legal proceeding against her alleging a

         13  no-pet lease clause violation. The court decided the

         14  case against Mrs. Lenet stating that it was doing so

         15  reluctantly based on case law at that time. Mrs.

         16  Lenet was ordered to either move or remove her dog,

         17  Baby 4, from her apartment.

         18                 The Committee listened to Mrs.

         19  Lenet's testimony and pleas, along with those of

         20  many other people, and passed legislation limiting

         21  enforcement of no-pet lease clauses. Yet, today, if

         22  Mrs. Lenet were alive, she would gain be subject to

         23  eviction if she got a new companion animal. So not

         24  much has really changed in the last 20 years.

         25                 And now many people, just like Mrs.
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          2  Lenet, are in the untenable position of having to

          3  choose between their apartments or their pets.

          4                 Often these individuals, many of whom

          5  live in rent stabilized apartments, cannot afford

          6  another comparable apartment, have ties to their

          7  neighbors and thus don't want to move, and could not

          8  locate a building allowing pets in any case.

          9                 Now I come here again knowing that

         10  the intent of the legislation 20 years ago was to

         11  give landlords one three-month opportunity to

         12  enforce no-pet clauses, not the right to evict

         13  tenants whenever they get a new pet.

         14                 After all, most if not all of the

         15  animals protected in 1983 are dead, so it has become

         16  open season on all of the tenants who kept these and

         17  have gotten another one or want to get another

         18  companion animal.

         19                 The one time waiver interpretation is

         20  clear from the language of the law itself, which

         21  provides for the waiver where a tenant in a multiple

         22  dwelling openly and notoriously for a period of

         23  three months or more following taking possession of

         24  a unit, harbors or has harbored a household pet or

         25  pets with the knowledge of the owner or owner's
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          2  agent who has failed within this time period to

          3  commence a legal proceeding to enforce the no-pet

          4  clause.

          5                 In fact, from the time the pet law

          6  was passed until 1996, the courts interpreted the

          7  law to provide landlords with only one opportunity

          8  to enforce this clause.

          9                 Thomas Manton, who was a prime

         10  sponsor of the bill and Chairman of the Council's

         11  Housing and Buildings Committee in 1983 when the pet

         12  law was passed, has stated in an affidavit as

         13  follows, and I have attached that affidavit for you:

         14                 This legislation -- and he's

         15  referring to the 1983 law -- this legislation was

         16  carefully drafted to provide landlords with one

         17  three-month opportunity to enforce a no-pet lease

         18  clause against a tenant in a multiple dwelling

         19  apartment... There was never an intent to allow for

         20  the already waived no-pet clause to be revived if a

         21  tenant subsequently brought a different pet into the

         22  apartment... If a provision in the lease is waived,

         23  it cannot and should not be invoked later.

         24  Otherwise, the result is and naturally would be mass

         25  confusion... There is nothing in the law providing
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          2  for waived clauses to be revived and it was

          3  certainly not my intent to allow the no-pet clause

          4  to be revived each time a tenant gets a pet.

          5                 We are asking today for the Council

          6  to restore the intent of the pet law by passing

          7  Intro 380. Please remember that this legislation

          8  does not protect tenants whose animals create a

          9  nuisance.

         10                 The Humane Society of New York

         11  frequently hears from distraught tenants after they

         12  are threatened with eviction. They ask about their

         13  legal rights and about what to do with their beloved

         14  pets.

         15                 We, along with other animal shelters,

         16  also receive animals from anguished tenants who feel

         17  they have no recourse but to relinquish their pets.

         18                 This adds to the already tragic

         19  overpopulation of homeless dogs and cats in our

         20  city.

         21                 And our adoption efforts, and that of

         22  other shelters, are stifled because of the lack of

         23  apartments where pets are welcome. Forty-thousand

         24  dogs and cats are killed at New York City funded

         25  animal shelters each year, many because of a lack of
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          2  available homes. This needs to change and you have

          3  the power to help.

          4                 Interestingly, 20 years ago the most

          5  vocal opponent of the pet bill was the New York City

          6  Housing Authority. Its housing ultimately was exempt

          7  from the City's pet law. Since that time, Congress

          8  passed legislation allowing pets in public housing.

          9  Congress recognized, based on numerous studies

         10  pointing to the health benefits, both physical and

         11  emotional, that animals can provide to people, that

         12  it was time to pass a law changing the longstanding

         13  prohibition against pets in public housing.

         14                 We are asking the City Council to

         15  also take a positive step in this direction.

         16                 According to studies at the Mayo

         17  Clinic, older pet owners were more active and less

         18  likely to be depressed than peers without companion

         19  animals. Lower Cholesterol levels and blood pressure

         20  were also associated with the keeping of companion

         21  animals.

         22                 Additionally, studies have shown that

         23  companion animals serve as an important coping

         24  resource to seniors, which in turn enables them to

         25  deal with stressful life events without resorting to
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          2  entering the health care system.

          3                 According to a UCLA study, seniors

          4  receiving Medicare who shared their lives with

          5  companion animals made fewer medical care visits

          6  than those who did not have any pets. And Dr. Alan

          7  Beck, an authority on the human/animal bond and a

          8  Professor at Purdue University, has stated, "Denying

          9  older adults the right to own a pet is part of the

         10  whole pattern of injustice foisted on them. We owe

         11  it to the elderly to develop laws and guidelines

         12  that will prolong their days and improve the quality

         13  of their daily lives."

         14                 Intro. No. 380, in addition to

         15  restoring the intent of the pet law with respect to

         16  the waiver issue, addresses the importance of pets

         17  to people by containing a provision to allow persons

         18  62 years of age or older to have pets as long as the

         19  animals do not create a nuisance.

         20                 You have the power to make the

         21  difference by taking action to remedy injustice. All

         22  too many tenants are alone because they are afraid

         23  to get a new pet for fear of eviction; all too many

         24  tenants fear that when their pets die, they will

         25  forever be without another companion animal; all too
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          2  many senior citizens, now retired and often alone,

          3  want to adopt an animal but cannot.

          4                 The Humane Society of New York asks

          5  you to respond by voting in favor of Intro. No. 380.

          6  You will be performing a humane service for the

          7  people and animals of our City.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         10  We've also been joined by Council Member Leroy

         11  Comrie.

         12                 Do we have any questions?

         13                 Melinda.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good morning.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You are just

         16  here to answer questions, right?

         17                 MS. DEFAO: Yes. There's only one

         18  thing I wanted to add to what Elinor had to say.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         20                 MS. DEFAO: Very briefly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Please say

         22  your name.

         23                 MS. DEFAO: Oh, I'm sorry. I'm Sandra

         24  Defao. I'm the Co-Executive Director at the Humane

         25  Society of New York, and the one thing that I'd like
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          2  to add, besides the fact to reiterate we do get

          3  numerous calls every week, is that we say no-pet

          4  clause, but it's really no family member clause,

          5  because a lot of these people, these aren't pets for

          6  them, it's their family member, and when we see how

          7  upset a lot of the senior citizens are, just young

          8  people, old people, who come to us with their

          9  animals, so that we can find homes for them, how

         10  distraught they are. We try to help them legally

         11  with Elinor, people are just too afraid, and if the

         12  legislation already supported them, then they

         13  wouldn't -- they're just afraid. No, I'm going to be

         14  evicted, I'm going to be evicted; no, I don't want

         15  to legally fight this or anything. So we feel that

         16  if legislation were already in place, then they

         17  wouldn't be so afraid and it would be much easier

         18  for them, because it is their family member, and

         19  when you see them, you know, so distraught, and when

         20  they're crying in front of you with their animal,

         21  it's very upsetting. So, that's why we've been

         22  working so hard on this, and we're grateful to Mary

         23  Max for getting all of her volunteers to help on

         24  this as well, and we're grateful to you for

         25  listening to us today, because it's a very important
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          2  issue. Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, I'd like to

          4  mimic that. I mean, I've never seen such an

          5  organized campaign on a particular bill, except

          6  perhaps maybe some of the rent stabilized laws, but

          7  this was really an organized, very successfully

          8  organized campaign. Congratulations on that.

          9                 I have some technical questions, just

         10  for the record. When a landlord -- the first three

         11  months when a landlord wants to do something about

         12  enforcing the no-pets clause, exactly how is that

         13  done?

         14                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: The landlord would

         15  have to commence a legal proceeding to enforce the

         16  no-pet clause, which normally starts out with a

         17  notice to cure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Against getting

         19  rid of the pet?

         20                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Well, it's an eviction

         21  proceeding, and if the tenant were to remove the

         22  pet, the landlord presumably would stop the

         23  proceeding.

         24                 Sometimes it goes to court, and at

         25  that time the tenant agrees to remove the pet, but

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  otherwise the tenant will fight the case and if the

          3  case was brought within the first three months the

          4  tenant will, for the most part, lose. And I know

          5  that there are tenants here today who will explain

          6  what happened to them personally, when landlords do

          7  commence legal proceedings against them during those

          8  first three-month period.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. This is

         10  the problem with being a lawyer and a legislator at

         11  the same time.

         12                 So, the landlord commences an action

         13  against the tenant for an eviction proceeding, but

         14  does a notice to cure to get rid of the pet?

         15                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Basically.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And if the

         17  notice to cure is satisfied, the eviction proceeding

         18  is dropped.

         19                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Yes. And Darryl

         20  Vernon, who is an attorney, and does a lot of these

         21  cases, can speak more specifically about that, but

         22  that's been my experience, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Are you involved

         24  a lot in those proceedings? I mean, once this

         25  happens, I assume folks reach out to you as well?
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          2                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: We at the Humane

          3  Society advise them as to what the law is and what

          4  their rights are. If it gets to the point where they

          5  are going to be going to court, we will refer them

          6  to the attorneys who handle these cases.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And do you find,

          8  since you have experience in this, do you find that

          9  most of the time that the landlord is enforcing the

         10  three-month provision, it's on the second pet and

         11  not the first one?

         12                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Not necessarily, no.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, in other

         14  words --

         15                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: It depends when a

         16  tenant -- no, not necessarily.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So someone can

         18  have a pet for 15, 20 years, the landlord never does

         19  anything about it, and then when they replace their

         20  pet --

         21                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: We often hear calls,

         22  receive calls from people, as I mentioned about Edna

         23  Lenet, which really was such an unjust situation,

         24  where people have had pets in the same apartment for

         25  many, many years, and then the landlord -- and the
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          2  landlord doesn't do anything about it.

          3                 MS. DEFAO: We're taking a dog

          4  tomorrow. This woman and her husband had a dog, a

          5  shepard, for 23 years, that's how well they took

          6  care of their dog, it was like their son, and they

          7  can't have children, and they go another dog, and

          8  now they're bringing the dog to us tomorrow, because

          9  they don't want to go through all the eviction

         10  steps, they don't want to go to court, take time off

         11  from work, everything, and they're very upset.

         12                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: I just want to clarify

         13  also, we get many calls from people who have had

         14  pets and then the landlord brings a proceeding. We

         15  also, one of the confusing things about this law,

         16  though, the way it's been interpreted, is that you

         17  have a lot of tenants who see other tenants in the

         18  building with pets, so there's an assumption made

         19  that pets are really allowed and the no pet clause

         20  is really not that significant to the landlord, and,

         21  so, there is a lot of confusion.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I would still

         23  assume, though, that most of the time the landlords

         24  will enforce the no-pet laws the first time around,

         25  since they have the opportunity to do it.
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          2                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Not necessarily, no. I

          3  can't say that that's the case. They sometimes just

          4  don't bother, then figure it out later and don't

          5  bother. It depends. Sometimes landlords change in a

          6  building. Sometimes a tenant has been there a long

          7  time and they feel the building is going to go

          8  co-op, so for that reason they want to get a tenant

          9  out. The housing markets change and people have been

         10  living there for years and they're paying lower rent

         11  so they want to get those people out, so there's a

         12  variety of reasons why things happen the way they

         13  do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, also on a

         15  technicality, there has been made an argument about

         16  co-op and condos and that the Board is the one who

         17  votes sometimes to do a no-pet clause. But this

         18  legislation will apply also to co-op and condos the

         19  way it's written. Do you have any comments on that?

         20                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Well, the existing

         21  law, since it was enacted 20 years ago, has been

         22  interpreted by the courts to apply to co-ops. It's

         23  been interpreted in half of the City to apply to

         24  condominiums.

         25                 The truth is what we found in a lot
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          2  of co-ops is that if people are allowed to have

          3  pets, they move into the co-op, they buy the co-op

          4  or shares in the co-op, they're very pleased and

          5  then the Board changes, and they say, oh, now we're

          6  not going to allow pets anymore, you can't replace

          7  that animal and it puts these people in a very,

          8  very, very bad situation.

          9                 And renters in co-op buildings are

         10  really, I find we get a lot of calls from them. So,

         11  there's a whole host of reasons why landlords and

         12  co-op boards choose to bring proceedings. Sometimes

         13  it's a change in the Board, sometimes they want to

         14  get rid of a renter, sometimes it's a rental and

         15  they're going co-op, many different reasons, and in

         16  all of these years of dealing with this issue which

         17  has now been 25, because I worked on this before the

         18  law passed in '83, there has been only a handful of

         19  situations where there's been an allegation, a

         20  legitimate allegation of nuisance, and I say

         21  legitimate, basically it's been that they are well

         22  behaved pets, and that there have been no problems

         23  associated with them, and not even alleged to be

         24  associated with them.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That was
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          2  actually my last question, which is that normally

          3  it's not a nuisance or an interference with health

          4  and safety that brings the action to the court

          5  system.

          6                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Definitely not.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Normally it's

          8  the first three months, right?

          9                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Because there is a

         10  nuisance this law doesn't apply anyway. The existing

         11  law that's been in effect for 20 years, this

         12  proposed bill, nuisance animals are never going to

         13  be protected. So this legislation and the existing

         14  law deals with, they both deal with well behaved

         15  animals, and as I mentioned, 99 percent of the calls

         16  I receive, the landlord, even more than 99 percent,

         17  the landlords are not even making an allegation that

         18  the animal is creating any kind of disturbance.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Do you win a

         20  lot?

         21                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: You know, I refer

         22  these cases out, and speaking to the attorneys, and

         23  some of them are here, they could tell you, if the

         24  action was brought after the three months, there's a

         25  good chance, but if the action is brought within the
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          2  first three months, even if an animal, another

          3  animal had been kept with that same tenant for 40

          4  years, they're going to probably lose, and that's

          5  why we're here today.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I want to thank

          7  you for all the work you've done on this

          8  legislation.

          9                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Thank you very much.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do we have

         12  any questions?

         13                 James Oddo, the animal lover. How is

         14  your dog today?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Fine.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, we

         17  thank you very much.

         18                 I'm going to call Rue McClanahan

         19  next. You're going to testify, Rue? We need some

         20  spice in this meeting. And get the sexy lady from

         21  Golden Girls. I told Rue before that, my husband and

         22  I, the evenings that we're home, we always have

         23  dinner with Rue and the rest of the ladies.

         24                 MS. McCLANAHAN: You must be a pretty

         25  good cook, because I'm eating very well.
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          2                 You know, I didn't like playing,

          3  there was one aspect of Blanche Devareaux I didn't

          4  like, and that was that she was not pro-animal.

          5  Betty White got to play that part, as you may

          6  recall. And I was --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Rue, just

          8  give us your name so that we can have your name on

          9  the record. I mean, we all know who you are.

         10                 MS. McCLANAHAN: Rue McClanahan. Am I

         11  too close to this?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No, you're

         13  fine.

         14                 MS. McCLANAHAN: Is that all right?

         15                 So, I didn't get to do too much of

         16  that, although we did talk the producers into

         17  producing two shows, writing two shows, where we got

         18  to be animal rights advocates. One was when we went

         19  down to the docks, and I got to sock a guy right in

         20  the jaw who was doing dolphin fishing. I remember

         21  that one.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That was on

         23  last week, as a matter of fact.

         24                 MS. McCLANAHAN: Was it really?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.
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          2                 MS. McCLANAHAN: I enjoyed that very

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I happen to

          5  be a dolphin lover.

          6                 MS. McCLANAHAN: Well, I mean why

          7  wouldn't everybody be? I got to swim with them this

          8  past spring in Miami. My son and I, which was a

          9  remarkable experience.

         10                 I've always been a pet, I don't like

         11  to call them "owner." I've always had pets. I grew

         12  up with pets as a child and I've always had dogs and

         13  cats, and I don't have a preference actually, I'm

         14  one of those rare people who love them both equally,

         15  but now I have just a cat.

         16                 When I lived in California I had six

         17  dogs and eight cats, because I lived in a house with

         18  big acreage and lots of space, and moving to New

         19  York I had to make some very hard choices. I had to

         20  find a home for all of my four dogs, one lady took

         21  all four. She loved them very, very much, and took

         22  better care of them, I think. I mean, she cooked

         23  individual meals for each of them. One had diabetes,

         24  one was set with something else, and she cooked

         25  individual meals, gave the diabetic dog shots twice
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          2  a day, which, you know, was very difficult for her

          3  to do, but she did that for the last four years. She

          4  made the last four years for those dogs very happy.

          5  They were nine when she took them, one was six, and

          6  they all lived to be 13 and then the one had cancer

          7  and he died a little young. But anyway, it was a

          8  wonderful experience, I couldn't live without them.

          9                 Right now I am aching for a dog, and

         10  I finally have an apartment now with a little back

         11  yard, and I'm thinking of getting a little dog to go

         12  in that little back yard because it would fit just

         13  right, and I don't think my husband would object to

         14  that. He doesn't think that dogs, big dogs should be

         15  kept in, but, you know, I think that big dogs can be

         16  kept in apartments if they're loved and if they

         17  bring love, and they're just as well behaved as

         18  little dogs. That is if you train them and don't let

         19  them jump on the kitchen table. And I knew people

         20  who used to let their dogs do -- and that's not the

         21  way to do it, but we're talking about well behaved

         22  animals.

         23                 I know from many years of working

         24  with groups out west that it's been proven that it

         25  lowers the blood pressure and is an aid to health to
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          2  have a pet with you. It's very good for older

          3  people. It's very important for older people.

          4                 Some older people wouldn't have

          5  anybody if they didn't have their dog or their cat.

          6  Some older people wouldn't get out of their

          7  apartments if they didn't have a dog to walk. I know

          8  people like that. And not only does it help to ease

          9  the problem with our euthansia situation in New

         10  York, but it eases the problem of doctor visits. I

         11  mean, people go to the doctor, what is it, 16

         12  percent less, if they have pets than if they don't.

         13  That cuts down that much on doctor visits. That says

         14  a lot about the psychological effect, doesn't it? It

         15  does to me. I know it's true of me. If my husband

         16  and I are having a disagreement, our cat Bianca is

         17  our third family member, brought her from

         18  California, she was one of those eight cats I had,

         19  and she lived long enough to come with me to New

         20  York. I would give her a very high percentage in

         21  saving our marriage, or at least -- I know I'm being

         22  a little flippant, but not very. I mean, there is

         23  some truth in that. It's almost, many people say,

         24  no, we don't have children but we have, you know,

         25  either dogs or cats. And it's just as important as
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          2  can be. I'm sure this is true, I mean everybody here

          3  must know that. I really didn't expect to speak, but

          4  here I go just running off at the mouth.

          5                 But I feel very strongly about this.

          6  First of all, the law as it stands doesn't make

          7  sense, except financially, and that was pointed out,

          8  that people are trying to evict their tenants and

          9  they're trying to find a way to get them out,

         10  because they want to raise the rent and they want to

         11  go co-op or whatever. Yes, I can understand that,

         12  that is a very really -- well, it's not optimal

         13  behavior, is it? I mean, it's not the way we want

         14  the world to function.

         15                 But it also would save a lot of

         16  money, not having to euthanize 40,000 animals in the

         17  pound, if you just want to talk about money saved on

         18  taxes, you know, we're paying for that, that doesn't

         19  just happen. They're very expensive to euthanize, by

         20  the way, it's so much, so much cheaper to spay and

         21  neuter them so that they don't create this problem.

         22  Spaying and neutering saves money, euthanasia wastes

         23  money. Euthanasia, is that it? Yes, euthanasia.

         24                 So, there's just a lot of good

         25  financial sound reasons, as well as emotional
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          2  reasons, health reasons. After all, you know, we're

          3  all supposed to be, I think in this country, most of

          4  us are some religious background, and even if we are

          5  just, as I am, not affiliated with any particular

          6  organization, I do try to base my life on love, and

          7  I do believe in the teachings of the great leaders

          8  of all the religions, well, all the religions except

          9  perhaps one that I don't really agree with, but that

         10  life is supposed to be based on love and fellowship

         11  and doing unto others, and, you know, that's

         12  important, that's what makes the world go round.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: For someone

         14  that didn't know what she was going to say, you did

         15  a pretty good job.

         16                 MS. McCLANAHAN: I don't know, I've

         17  gotten into this issue, I'm so passionate about it.

         18  Thank you for letting me speak.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do we have

         20  anyone that has any questions?

         21                 Melinda.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The members are,

         23  there are several meetings going on so there's going

         24  to be an influx of folks coming in now throughout

         25  the day, I just want to point out one thing that you

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  said, Ms. McClanahan, which is that this legislation

          3  is about well-behaved pets. It is not about pets who

          4  if you take the tenant to court, you know, have

          5  attacked people in the hallway, or are acting in

          6  ways that you wouldn't want as a neighbor in

          7  general. So, I do want to thank you very much for

          8  making that point, because I think it's a point that

          9  has lost the times in these hearings. So, I do thank

         10  you, and you did a very nice job. We appreciate that

         11  you're here.

         12                 MS. McCLANAHAN: Thank you. One point

         13  that I want to emphasize that's in this material,

         14  which is quoted often, and that is, the legislation

         15  that you're proposing is a common sense law. It's a

         16  common sense idea. It makes sense whereas the other

         17  one doesn't.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         20  very much for being with us today.

         21                 I love common sense. Most of the

         22  stuff we do doesn't make any sense at all, so --

         23                 We have Mary Max and Peter Max. And I

         24  almost didn't want to have this hearing today,

         25  because then that would mean I wouldn't get any more
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          2  notes from Peter Max. So, I figure now I'll get a

          3  nice thank you note.

          4                 MS. MAX: We still have a few steps to

          5  go.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          7                 Mary, I think you're the speaker

          8  today?

          9                 MS. MAX: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. Just

         11  introduce yourself.

         12                 MS. MAX: Oh, Mary Max. Thank you,

         13  Council members, for having us today. And I also

         14  want to thank all my Intro. 380 teammates that have

         15  called all of your offices so much and have helped

         16  me with my campaign.

         17                 I'm just going to speak from my

         18  experience, managing the campaign on this bill.

         19                 I've never dealt with cat and dog

         20  issues before. I lobby on a federal and state level

         21  but I've mostly dealt with wildlife or farmed

         22  animals, and I went to an adoption event that was

         23  held in Central Park in the summer and I had never

         24  seen so many cats and dogs stuck and cages and

         25  looked into the eyes of all of these cats and dogs
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          2  who wanted homes, and there were so many people

          3  there that couldn't take, that couldn't adopt a cat

          4  or a dog because their building didn't allow them.

          5  And I wasn't even aware of the situation. And just

          6  that experience that day, I went -- it's like what

          7  Rue said, it's like this doesn't make sense.

          8                 I think it sometimes sounds like a

          9  cliche' of, oh, the pet is part of my family and

         10  people don't really want to take that seriously, but

         11  cats and dogs really are part of people's families.

         12                 And it's as ludicrous to me to say

         13  that a cat or a dog can't be allowed into a

         14  building. Some people might not agree with this as

         15  it is for a landlord to say you can't have a child.

         16  We're all animals, cats and dogs are non-human

         17  animals, we are the human animal. And, yes, there

         18  are differences, but there's a lot of similarities.

         19                 Also, while working on this bill I

         20  met so many people who are suffering because they

         21  cannot have their cat or dog, I mean truly

         22  suffering, and I would just like the Council Members

         23  to really take that in seriously.

         24                 I didn't grow up with cats and dogs.

         25  I have them now but I didn't grow up with cats and
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          2  dogs, so I do have the perspective of when you're

          3  not living with an animal, you don't really get how

          4  much love the animals give to you and how much love

          5  you give back to the animals and the bond that

          6  creates, and it's really an important part of

          7  people's lives.

          8                 As has been mentioned here, there are

          9  significant studies and statistics that show that

         10  people are healthier, less sick, as Rue was saying,

         11  they go to the doctor less, even when they go to the

         12  doctor they have less things wrong. I just read a

         13  study that I think some of the Council Members may

         14  have seen already, Time Magazine that published that

         15  said that when they were studying people over 65

         16  they actually had more good hormones in their blood

         17  stream than bad hormones for the people that had

         18  animals.

         19                 There was also a report that was sent

         20  to some of the Council members about the benefits of

         21  pet friendly housing to landlords, and just to sum

         22  it up briefly, when landlords do offer pet friendly

         23  housing, they tend to have quote/unquote better

         24  tenants.

         25                 The tenants are so thankful to be in
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          2  a building that it's pet friendly, that they're

          3  actually like really, really good tenants. Those

          4  tenants tend to stay there longer, because they

          5  don't want to have to look for another building

          6  that's pet friendly, so the landlord also doesn't

          7  have as much vacancy, you know, as much turnover

          8  rate. They also did comparative studies of -- what

          9  word am I looking for, like a nuisance animal, like

         10  animals cause more damage in apartment buildings

         11  than children would, and was basically no

         12  difference.

         13                 When people did leave a building,

         14  like if they had to just move out of state,

         15  landlords had such an easier time filling that

         16  apartment because they got so many applicants, so it

         17  was a win win win for landlords to offer pet

         18  friendly housing.

         19                 Also, through my campaign, I've come

         20  across veterinarians who are concerned about their

         21  businesses going down, I've come across pet supply

         22  shop owners who are concerned about their businesses

         23  going down, just economically if there's less

         24  animals to get dog food to, and there's less animals

         25  for the vets to take care of. That affects their
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          2  City economically. Some of my friends are putting

          3  themselves through college and they're doing it by

          4  being dog walkers. Just even on that level, you

          5  know, my friends are affected because there's less

          6  dogs. A couple of things have been brought up about

          7  the -- well, you know, about the nuisance animals

          8  and obviously if there is an aggressive dog or a

          9  nuisance animal, that situation is handled but I do

         10  think those situations are rare, and I just want to

         11  say I do think those situations are rare.

         12                 Through the campaign I would also

         13  like to let Council members know that we have

         14  collected thus far 9,208 signatures throughout the

         15  City of people that are supporting this bill.

         16                 And just to bring it back around to

         17  what Rue said, I mean this is a common sense

         18  goodwill kindness to all measure that I just really

         19  hope New York City, as a compassionate community,

         20  will pass.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 Do we have any questions?

         24                 We've also been joined by Council

         25  Member Kendall Stewart, a member of this Committee.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Ms. Max, through

          3  your campaign that you have done, what is the one

          4  issue folks keep talking about? The 9,000 signatures

          5  I assume are not all pet owners.

          6                 MS. MAX: Mostly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They're mostly?

          8  I'm trying to help you here.

          9                 MS. MAX: Oh, oh, oh. I thought you

         10  meant like I just got people coming out of Macy's.

         11  They would like to be.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They would like

         13  to be pet owners, or their family members are pet

         14  owners, their mother or father are pet owners.

         15                 MS. MAX: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Their children

         17  are pet owners. They know someone who would like to

         18  be able to either have a pet or is having problems

         19  keeping that pet.

         20                 MS. MAX: Right. I misunderstood. I

         21  just thought it was like random people I got to sign

         22  this.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You did a

         24  campaign through a lot of the veterinarians'

         25  offices, obviously, throughout the City, and have
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          2  they talked to you about some of the issues that

          3  have come up?

          4                 I mean, obviously if there was a

          5  nuisance pet, I assume the veterinarians would be

          6  aware that that was a huge problem in the apartment

          7  buildings?

          8                 MS. MAX: Yes, but it's like so rare.

          9  That is just so rare.

         10                 You know, I know it becomes

         11  sensationalized on the news when you hear about, you

         12  know, a certain dog attacked a certain person, but

         13  when you consider the thousands of dogs that people

         14  have in the City and everyone is just fine, it's

         15  rare. It's unfortunate when it happens but it's not

         16  the norm.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just a thank you

         18  to you and Mr. Max. Mr. Max has also given many of

         19  us a lot of years of pleasure with your art work.

         20                 MR. MAX: I'd like to just say I

         21  really support Mary's work, having stood by her all

         22  these months, and hearing all the subjects around

         23  the animals and owners, and that's why I'm here

         24  today. And so many of my friends, friends of mine

         25  who are in movies or in theater, or just regular

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  business people, know about this particular intro,

          3  and they all support it in a big way.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I also want to

          5  mimic what my Chair said, your art work is beautiful

          6  and your letters to us. So, keep them coming.

          7                 MR. MAX: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         11  both very much.

         12                 Oh, Council Member Stewart.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 Good morning.

         16                 MS. MAX: Hi.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm in

         18  agreement about this bill, however, I have a

         19  question that I want to ask you concerning certain

         20  types or breeds of dogs.

         21                 You know of the wave of attacks that

         22  we have had during the recent years. What is your

         23  take, what is your thinking on the fact that we

         24  should have some sort of liability insurance for

         25  those types or those breeds of dogs?
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          2                 MS. MAX: Oh, I think that's a

          3  separate issue, isn't it?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, it

          5  might be a separate issue, but I just want to know.

          6  If someone is living in my building and has a

          7  rottweiler or pit bull, I would want to be assured

          8  that that person has some kind of insurance, if that

          9  dog attacks my child or one of my family, that

         10  there's some recourse, some type of liability

         11  insurance.

         12                 I just want to know your take on it.

         13                 MS. MAX: Well, I am not an expert on

         14  that. But I will tell you at least what I have

         15  learned in the past couple of years. Maybe somebody

         16  like Ed Sayrs from the ASPCA will have better and

         17  just accurate information on that.

         18                 From what I earned about dogs over

         19  the past few months is that rottweilers and pit

         20  bulls aren't naturally aggressive dogs. Pit bulls

         21  are actually very docile dogs. They are trained to

         22  be aggressive. So, that is the responsibility of the

         23  owner. I mean, the owner has trained that dog to be

         24  aggressive. I think that's where the focus should

         25  be. I don't think people should be allowed to train
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          2  their dogs to be aggressive. And if they do, then

          3  maybe they just shouldn't be in the building or they

          4  shouldn't have dogs or they should live in the

          5  country. I don't know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I was just

          7  thinking in terms of some protection for people who

          8  might be hurt certain type of pets. That's all I'm

          9  concerned about. And you can't really tell who is

         10  training or who is not training their pets to be

         11  vicious and dangerous. I just want to make sure that

         12  that elderly person in that building, who might be

         13  walking down the stairs, is not attacked by someone

         14  who has a rottweiler or some other pet. That's what

         15  I'm concerned about. So, I was thinking that even

         16  though we're allowed to have pets in the building,

         17  that they should have some sort of liability

         18  insurance. Like ordinarily a car is not that

         19  dangerous, but we must have insurance for a car.

         20                 MS. MAX: And maybe that's something

         21  that can be worked out amongst the Council members

         22  and lawyers, you know, in the meeting, because I

         23  certainly don't wan people harmed, I'm just not a

         24  lawyer to be able to work out the nuances of that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,
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          2  thank you. I just wanted you to think along those

          3  lines.

          4                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6                 Thank you, again.

          7                 At this point we're going to put on

          8  the three-minute clock, if you saw all the names I

          9  had up here you would begin to worry that we get

         10  finished today.

         11                 Our next speaker will be Frank Ricci

         12  from RSA. And then I'm also going to start calling

         13  people up in twos and threes so that we can move it

         14  along.

         15                 MR. RICCI: Thank you, Madam Chair. My

         16  name is Frank Ricci, I'm the Director of Government

         17  Affairs for the Rent Stabilization Association.  We

         18  represent about 25,000 owners and managing agents of

         19  rent-regulated property, as well as co-ops, condos

         20  and unregulated property in New York City.

         21                 I'd like to start off saying that I

         22  am as happy as you are to be here and not talk about

         23  lead today.

         24                 On behalf of the RSA, I want to say I

         25  don't think we disagree with any of the issues that
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          2  were voiced here already today, in terms of the

          3  emotional commitment that people have with their

          4  pets. But often times owners and managers are put in

          5  the middle of the situation between tenants who want

          6  to have pets and other tenants in buildings who

          7  don't want to have pets in the building, and

          8  sometimes tenants and residents for health reasons

          9  don't want to be around pets, there's many tenants

         10  who are fearful of dogs, some even cats. But there

         11  are owners out there who also market their buildings

         12  as being pet-friendly. I happen to live next to

         13  Riverside South, which is the new 16 building

         14  development going up on the west side, and that's

         15  marketed as a pet-friendly complex. So, that void is

         16  often filled by other owners who want to do that.

         17                 There's issues here in this bill that

         18  the reason I'm here today is to point out some of

         19  those issues on the bill, that if they could be

         20  addressed, I think it would lower a lot of

         21  resistance on the part of owners and managers to a

         22  bill like this.

         23                 There is a lot of talk today about

         24  nuisance cases and how very few cases are brought in

         25  court based on nuisance. Well, the reason that is is
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          2  that Housing Court is such a difficult place to do

          3  business and that when you have a pet who may be

          4  barking a lot, creating a nuisance, to get other

          5  residents in a building to come down to testify to

          6  support the complaints that are being made is a

          7  difficult task, so it never gets there. There may be

          8  a few cases but that's only because the owner has

          9  had numerous phone calls over a period of time about

         10  a dog barking which sometimes gets other dogs on the

         11  same floor barking creating a nuisance and people

         12  object to it.

         13                 But to expect those people to then

         14  take a day off, or actually it's never a day in

         15  Housing Court, it's many days over many, many

         16  months, of course cases get resolved there, is

         17  unrealistic. So, I do take issue with some of the

         18  statements made earlier about how there's very few

         19  nuisance cases brought, and that's only because of

         20  the process makes it difficult to bring those.

         21                 At any rate, I can see the clock

         22  ticking down, let me just make a few suggestions as

         23  to how we see this bill to make it easier for owners

         24  and managers to deal with.

         25                 First, if there was an exemption
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          2  created for owners to exempt them from the provision

          3  of the warranty of habitability that requires them

          4  to provide quiet enjoyment to other tenants in the

          5  building, that would be very, very helpful.

          6                 The second issue would be, and this

          7  is done in a lot of unregulated buildings now, as

          8  well as co-ops and condos, is lifting -- right now

          9  in a stabilized building, the owner by law can only

         10  collect one month security, but in many unregulated

         11  buildings there is an extra charge, a security

         12  deposit, beyond the one month, to cover any damage

         13  that may occur from a pet.

         14                 So, I think if that were changed that

         15  would also be extremely helpful. And then the final

         16  thing, and this is something that Councilman Stewart

         17  just mentioned, some sort of exemption or protection

         18  from liability in the unlikely event that you had an

         19  unwieldy dog in the building that, you know, were to

         20  bite someone.

         21                 So, I didn't prepare any testimony

         22  today, but I wanted to raise -- use this opportunity

         23  to raise these points and be glad to talk to your

         24  staff or Councilwoman Katz' staff in the future

         25  about this.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do you have

          4  any questions, Councilwoman Katz?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm a little

          6  confused. I'm sorry. I need to, again, it's a

          7  technicality, but I need to, if we're going to get

          8  this bill through at some point soon in the future,

          9  be able to draft a bill in the way that I'm

         10  comfortable with legally, and my question really is

         11  to you, the exemption of warrant of habitability for

         12  noise, and the one-month security to be two months

         13  --

         14                 MR. RICCI: I didn't say two months,

         15  by the way. Many cases --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just increase.

         17                 MR. RICCI: Just increase.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the

         19  exemption from liability, all of those need the

         20  landlord to acknowledge the presence of the dog or

         21  cat.

         22                 MR. RICCI: Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So my question

         24  is, if the landlord and the tenant have an agreement

         25  on the presence of the pet, what does that do to the
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          2  law as it even presently stands?

          3                 MR. RICCI: Well, this would be, we're

          4  talking about in situations beyond the law now.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So you're only

          6  talking about the second pet?

          7                 MR. RICCI: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: See what I'm

          9  saying, if the law as it stands now requires the

         10  landlord to start a motion for an eviction in the

         11  first three months that you have the pet, right? If

         12  we go through the process of doing all of these

         13  things, we need to discuss then --

         14                 MR. RICCI: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:-- In the future

         16  sort of the intricate issues of your acknowledging

         17  that the pet is there and not having a cause of

         18  action.

         19                 MR. RICCI: I've raised these issues

         20  because these are what our members are saying to us,

         21  to why they even have no-pet policies, so if you had

         22  some of these built in, you would see less

         23  buildings, I think, that would not have a no-pet

         24  policy.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, basically, I
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          2  just want to be clear, what the Rent Stabilization

          3  Board is really trying to say is that if we could

          4  work out these three provisions that you mentioned

          5  and work out fairly to everyone, you're really

          6  actually talking about replacing the law as it is

          7  now?

          8                 MR. RICCI: We're talking about

          9  creating an environment where more buildings would

         10  -- where less owners would be reluctant to have

         11  tenants of the building with pets, to create a

         12  bigger environment in the City to allow more pets in

         13  more buildings.

         14                 The reason that owners have the

         15  no-pet policies now is because of the fear of some

         16  of these things that I enumerated.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, we'll

         18  have to discuss it later at some point, because

         19  legally I find an inherent, I don't know what you

         20  call it, oxymoron, conflict, with the way -- you'd

         21  have to acknowledge that the pet is there, you'd

         22  have to not bring the proceedings for notice of

         23  eviction, and then we'd have to get these three

         24  issues dealt with.

         25                 MR. RICCI: I was talking in the

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  context of just creating a better environment for a

          3  pet-friendly building.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I appreciate

          5  your testimony here today, and coming before so many

          6  folks I know it probably was not an easy thing and I

          7  appreciate that you're here. I understand you've

          8  been doing a whole bunch of interviews on this as

          9  well.

         10                 MR. RICCI: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We've also

         12  been joined by, I think I saw here, Councilwoman

         13  Gale Brewer.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Ricci. We certainly

         15  appreciate your testimony.

         16                 Next we have Ed Sayres, Erin Baskin

         17  and Marcello Forte.

         18                 Marcello, are you out there? Okay.

         19  Could we remove one of those chairs? I think we only

         20  need three. Any one of you can decide who will speak

         21  first, just make sure that you identify yourself

         22  before you speak.

         23                 MR. SAYRES: Good morning, everyone.

         24  I'm Ed Sayres, President of the ASPCA, and of course

         25  I want to thank the Housing Committee for having
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          2  this opportunity to testify in favor of Intro. 380.

          3                 The ASPCA supports this important

          4  legislation which will better protect tenants living

          5  in multiple dwellings in New York City to have a

          6  companion animal.

          7                 Although the ASPCA always interpreted

          8  the current law as providing tenants with legal

          9  coverage for future pets, Intro. 380 will clarify

         10  the protection against the boilerplate no-pet

         11  provisions in standard leases.

         12                 Equally significant, Intro. 380

         13  recognizes the important relationship between senior

         14  citizens and companion animals, by granting New York

         15  City's elderly population the opportunity to have a

         16  pet without losing the roof over their head.

         17                 You no doubt will hear today about

         18  the undisputed health benefits that companion

         19  animals bestow on people, both from a physiological

         20  point of view, and a social standpoint.

         21                 I'm here today to discuss the impact

         22  the no-pet provisions and policies have in New York

         23  City, as well as the concerns raised by the

         24  opposition regarding the potential nuisance that

         25  some animals may pose.
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          2                 Let me say from the outset that the

          3  ASPCA only supports responsible pet ownership. This

          4  is crucial for both the well-being of the animal and

          5  the health and safety of the community.

          6                 No pet provisions and policies in

          7  multiple dwellings is a leading factor causing the

          8  euthanasia of healthy, adoptable animals and

          9  prevents New York City from becoming a no-kill City.

         10                 By adopting a reasonable pet policy

         11  which Intro. 380 certainly achieves, and enabling

         12  responsible people to have a companion animal, more

         13  healthy adoptable animals will find homes and avoid

         14  the tragic end of euthanasia.

         15                 Animal care and control will also

         16  greatly benefit from more animal-friendly housing

         17  since this will greatly reduce the number of animals

         18  relinquished at its facilities and those abandoned

         19  animals it retrieves from the streets, and realize

         20  over time the cost to perform animal control will

         21  decrease and stabilize due to fewer animals being in

         22  the system.

         23                 I'd like to address the opposition's

         24  claim that Intro. 380 will only further create

         25  nuisance situations for more animals and wreak havoc
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          2  in apartment buildings.

          3                 While we cannot deny that there are

          4  some people who are not responsible pet owners, the

          5  current nuisance exclusion remains intact under

          6  Intro. 380 and therefore would not protect the

          7  harboring of these animals. Of all the animals

          8  maintained in the City apartments, the number of

          9  nuisance cases remains small in comparison. And

         10  furthermore, it would be unfair to deny both

         11  responsible pet owners and potential owners, the

         12  ability to have a companion animal. It's akin to

         13  denying a person a license to drive because there

         14  are some irresponsible drivers or a person the

         15  opportunity to have a child because some parents are

         16  not responsible caretakers.

         17                 Implementing a pet policy provides

         18  many safeguards against irresponsible pet

         19  ownerships. This certainly was the case when the

         20  ASPCA spearheaded the legislation in Congress in

         21  1998, very similar to Intro. 380, which provides

         22  tenants and federally assisted housing the ability

         23  to have a companion animal. There was the opposition

         24  raised by New York City Housing Authority and HUD

         25  based on the problems experienced with some animals,
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          2  in particular, dogs being trained to fight. Yet,

          3  despite the pet ban, many tenants harbored an

          4  animal, both responsibly and irresponsibly and the

          5  legislation which ultimately was enacted into law

          6  now provides Housing Authorities across the country

          7  with the ability to better monitor the pets kept in

          8  these developments and procedures to take an animal

          9  from the premises when it becomes a nuisance.

         10                 On behalf of the ASPCA and our

         11  thousands of New York City supporters, I

         12  respectfully urge the Housing Committee to vote in

         13  favor of this pivotal legislation this holiday

         14  season and be a part a part of the joy that

         15  companion animals bring.

         16                 The ASPCA stands ready to assist the

         17  committee in any way to bring this proposed law to

         18  fruition.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21                 We'll hear from the three and then

         22  we'll see if there are any questions, okay?

         23                 MS. BASKIN: Hello. My name is Erin

         24  Baskin, and I am reading this statement in support

         25  of Intro. No. 380 on behalf of Bide-A-Wee Home
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          2  Association, a humane society that has served

          3  homeless animals, pet owners and the community at

          4  large in the metropolitan New York area for the past

          5  100 years.

          6                 Bide-A-Wee operates an animal

          7  shelter, full service veterinary clinic, and an

          8  extensive community outreach program on East 38th

          9  Street in Manhattan.

         10                 We also have facilities at two

         11  locations on Long Island and offer many programs

         12  that support the interaction between the elderly and

         13  companion animals, including a pet therapy program

         14  and a retirement home for older animals whose

         15  owners, primarily the elderly, are deceased or too

         16  ill to care for their pets any longer.

         17                 Bide-A-Wee is strongly supportive of

         18  Intro. No. 380, a bill which seeks to expand the

         19  right of community members to reside in rental

         20  housing with their animal companions by specifying

         21  that a waiver by the tenants' landlord of the no-pet

         22  clause in a tenant's lease is valid for the duration

         23  of the tenant's occupancy, and applies to all pets

         24  that reside with the tenant for the duration of

         25  their occupancy.
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          2                 In addition, Intro. 380 offers

          3  support to the senior pet-owning population by

          4  protecting them from being denied occupancy or being

          5  evicted from rental housing for keeping a pet.

          6                 As a humane society, our mission is

          7  to take in animals that for a variety of reasons can

          8  no longer be cared for by their owners and find them

          9  responsible, caring new homes.

         10                 By far one of the most common reasons

         11  people surrender to us is that they cannot find

         12  suitable housing that would allow them to keep their

         13  pets.

         14                 Our organization fields numerous

         15  calls daily from distraught pet owners who are heart

         16  broken at the prospect of having to give up their

         17  pets because they cannot find a place to live that

         18  will accept their pet.

         19                 These individuals have exhausted all

         20  their options and contact our shelter as their last

         21  resort. At our shelter, and at shelters across the

         22  City, this lack of pet friendly housing results in

         23  large numbers of dogs and cats ending up homeless.

         24                 The ramifications of this one issue

         25  are numerous and far reaching. In our society, and
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          2  certainly in New York City, pets are considerate

          3  members of the family, and the change in the family

          4  structure that is caused by having to give an animal

          5  up because of lack of options, regarding

          6  pet-friendly housing can be devastating to all

          7  family members, including parents, people living

          8  alone, the elderly and children.

          9                 Moreover, lack of suitable housing is

         10  a major contributor to the overflow of animals

         11  entering animal shelters. It is a fact that there

         12  are four more animals entering our City shelters

         13  than the number of suitable homes waiting for them.

         14                 Beyond the sad situation this creates

         15  for our animal companions, there is a significant

         16  economic impact on the City as well. It is much more

         17  effective to work on ways to keep these animals in

         18  their homes in the first place.

         19                 Intro. No. 380 would accomplish the

         20  simple goal that would have an overwhelmingly

         21  positive impact on New York City pet owners, as well

         22  as the community at large.

         23                 Intro. 380 would go far to prevent

         24  the family upheaval and heartache we see every day

         25  by providing protection for members of the committee
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          2  who choose to live with companion animals.

          3                 It is also an important component in

          4  addressing pet homelessness in New York City. It

          5  will provide piece of mind for many New Yorkers who

          6  should not be penalized because they are pet owners,

          7  and it will enhance the quality of life for all that

          8  call this City home.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 MR. FORTE: Can you hear me all right?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Identify

         14  yourself for the record.

         15                 MR. FORTE: My name is Marcello Forte

         16  from Animal Haven. I decided not to read my prepared

         17  speech. I don't think I could restate anything that

         18  was already said in that way any stronger than these

         19  two people have, but I would like to use my time to

         20  reiterate a couple of key points that I'd like to

         21  drive home and share recent happenings at our

         22  shelter.

         23                 We place about 1,000 animals a year

         24  and have three facilities in the New York area. I

         25  think something that is really important for us to

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  keep in mind is that this is not necessarily a pet

          3  law. I think what we're trying to express here is

          4  this is a people law, that people really rely on

          5  these relationships for many, many reasons, and

          6  denying people this basic ability and right really

          7  is detrimental on their emotional and health

          8  wellbeings, besides what it impacts on our

          9  community, which is fairly disgraceful, of how many

         10  animals are put to sleep in New York City every

         11  year.

         12                 Recently we had a very young and

         13  vibrant 70-year-old woman who needed to get out of

         14  her fifth-floor walk-up. She climbed those stairs

         15  many days of her life, but finally decided she

         16  needed to move into an elevated building. She ended

         17  having to give up her eight-year-old chiwowa for not

         18  being able to find an elevated building that she

         19  could afford.

         20                 Seniors are also people who will

         21  adopt senior pets, and many seniors realize that

         22  adopting an older pet is going to make a lot more

         23  sense for them, and let's face it, the lifespan and

         24  commitment of an older pet makes sense for an older

         25  person to adopt.
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          2                 Seniors are really, senior pets are

          3  really difficult animals to place, and not allowing

          4  seniors to adopt hurts the humane societies.

          5                 This law basically is going to help

          6  us strengthen our ability to place animals, but more

          7  importantly, focus on the appropriateness of human

          8  beings, and rights that human beings should have and

          9  the heartache that people should not have to go

         10  through.

         11                 Thank you for your time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         13                 Since the three of you represent

         14  agencies that take in pets, give out pets, am I

         15  right in saying that you do advocate the neutering

         16  or spaying of animals?

         17                 MR. SAYRES: Yes, absolutely. It's a

         18  policy of adoption for all of us.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, it's the

         20  policy of adoption?

         21                 MS. BASKIN: Yes.

         22                 MR. FORTE: No animal is placed before

         23  it's spayed or neutered in the City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Since you

         25  mentioned that there are so many that are put to
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          2  sleep, I've actually been through that, putting them

          3  to sleep.

          4                 MR. FORTE: We all really advocate, as

          5  Ed Sayres said, responsible ownership, and we all

          6  make sure that the animals we place for adoption are

          7  safe animals to be placed. And none of us want to

          8  live in a building with a dangerous animal.

          9                 You know, also remember that there

         10  haven't been as many deaths due to cats that we can

         11  really mention, and the reality is that responsible

         12  ownership is important, but people need to have

         13  their companions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You also

         15  mentioned seniors adopting senior animals. When they

         16  do so with your agencies, do you have some kind of

         17  follow-up care, because senior animals as senior

         18  folks do require more care and probably have medical

         19  problems.

         20                 MR. SAYRES: Yes, adoption everywhere

         21  is such a great deal, because there is always that

         22  veterinary support --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Could you

         24  just identify yourself again?

         25                 MR. SAYRES: Ed Sayres with the ASPCA.
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          2  Adoption from any of our shelters usually includes

          3  spay/neuter, includes shots, includes discounts for

          4  seniors, so it's just really a great value when you

          5  go to a shelter to adopt, because you're going to

          6  get these things included. Any behavior counseling,

          7  little tips that you might need.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: What if an

          9  animal has some kind of chronic illness? They can

         10  take the animal to your agency for care?

         11                 MR. SAYRES: Yes. We have a veterinary

         12  hospital. We all have veterinary clinics associated,

         13  so again there's that support system especially for

         14  seniors.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         16                 We've also been joined by

         17  Councilwoman Diana Reyna, who is a member of the

         18  Committee.

         19                 Do we have any questions?

         20                 MR. FORTE: Just one last comment.

         21                 We do take back all of our animals at

         22  any time, as well. So, if a senior does pass away

         23  and the animal is left un-homed, we will take

         24  responsibility for that animal. So, that support

         25  system is in place already.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You have to

          3  repeat your name again, I'm sorry.

          4                 MR. FORTE: Marcello Forte from Animal

          5  Haven.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, thank

          7  you.

          8                 Okay, thank you very much.

          9                 Lawrence Ostrau. Dr. J. Frank and Dr.

         10  P. Frank. You've confused me, there's two of you out

         11  there. That's because you're probably Mr. and Mrs.

         12                 So, does this mean I can keep this?

         13                 MR. OSTRAU: Certainly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: It's under

         15  $50, right?

         16                 MR. OSTRAU: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         18                 Thank you. Whoever wants to start,

         19  start. Just make sure you identify yourself.

         20                 MR. OSTRAU: Madam Chairman,

         21  Councilperson Katz, Rivera, Comrie, Stewart and

         22  Reyna, I just want to thank you for the opportunity

         23  to appear here today, representing basically myself

         24  and little Waldo, who you have seen.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Please
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          2  identify yourself.

          3                 MR. OSTRAU: Larry Ostrau. And, again,

          4  thank you for the opportunity to appear here today.

          5                 Originally I moved into my building

          6  in 1976, showing up with my first terrier in the

          7  renting office at the time to acquire my apartment

          8  and I was told by the senior renting agent that,

          9  quote, the landlord loves pets, and we're very happy

         10  to have you in here. That was 1976.

         11                 Two major legal cases later I had to

         12  give my pet up in the Year 2000. The case began

         13  then. And for the past few years he's been living

         14  with friends about four blocks from me, and I go to

         15  visit him every night when I come home from the

         16  office and on the weekends as well.

         17                 This is not only difficult, but the

         18  legal costs alone are in excess of almost $20,000.

         19  One would say, well, why don't you move? The answer

         20  is simple. This is my home. This is my City. And

         21  this is my pet. And when they needed me, my landlord

         22  was delighted to have me come in with a pet. And

         23  coincidentally, pressure was placed on me through

         24  various means by the landlord through the summons

         25  process, continually almost, while I had pets, to
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          2  move during periods of recession -- I'm sorry,

          3  during periods of economic boom, when there was a

          4  recession the pressure was off.

          5                 So, thinking that this may not just

          6  be me that's being victimized like this, I called

          7  the Health Department recently and found out there

          8  are 100,000 registered pet owners approximately in

          9  the five boroughs. One in five people register their

         10  pets. We look at the demography of the market, we

         11  can see 2.3 is the average size of the household.

         12  This gives us a net/net universe of almost a quarter

         13  of a million people that are going to be affected by

         14  what's decided here today and in the future. That's

         15  the minimum. If you go with the five people that are

         16  pet owners, we're looking at a universe of close to

         17  a million people.

         18                 These are very large numbers and

         19  they're not inconsequential.

         20                 The question must be raised and

         21  basically resolved that pets are people and people

         22  love their pets, and we have to really establish the

         23  ground rules into which we can all interact,

         24  landlords and tenants. My experience in Housing

         25  Court has taught me that they're not equipped to
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          2  handle the volume of complaints that are being

          3  processed right now, and to go through the process

          4  is at best agonizing.

          5                 So, I want to thank you for the time

          6  you have given me, and what I would like to also say

          7  is that there really are some landlords who

          8  acknowledge the fact that pets should be part of the

          9  family and should be part of the tenants family. So

         10  you can't paint them all with a bad brush.

         11                 I think what we're looking at is a

         12  minority of landlords and a majority of tenants, and

         13  I think it's one of interest versus numbers, and I

         14  think when you really go through the process of

         15  deciding this legislation, hopefully you'll fall on

         16  the side of numbers. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         18                 Dr. Frank, I like your little

         19  "Animals Already Get It. We Teach People."

         20                 DR. P. FRANK: Thank you. Hello. I'm

         21  Pamela Carlile Frank.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Please bring

         23  the mic closer. Is the light off?

         24                 DR. P. FRANK: It's on.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Turn it off.
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          2  When it's off, it's on.

          3                 Okay, there you go.

          4                 DR. P. FRANK: Thank you for

          5  permitting us to speak today in support of Intro.

          6  380.

          7                 I'm from FIREPAW, which is an acronym

          8  for the Foundation for Interdisciplinary Research

          9  and Education Promoting Animal Welfare, and before

         10  anybody thinks that I am biased, let me preface

         11  this, I have been a tenant, I am a property owner, I

         12  have been a property manager, and I've been a

         13  landlord, and I can see everybody's side. That's

         14  number one.

         15                 Number two, more importantly, I am a

         16  scientist, and I was trained very rigorously to

         17  enter into every project in an unbiased fashion. So,

         18  I have to accept whatever the results are, even if

         19  I'm not happy with them at the personal level. And

         20  we are here today to discuss the findings of a

         21  recent national, empirical research project that we

         22  completed, and the name of it is the Companion

         23  Animal Renter Study, or CARS. The Council has copies

         24  of the executive summary report, and a cover letter

         25  with brief bullets for an at-a-glance summary of
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          2  findings, and Josh will be highlighting some of

          3  those.

          4                 I just want to make a couple of brief

          5  points. First off, this research was funded by the

          6  Toby Fund, which is administered by a longstanding

          7  law firm here in New York City, and we are grateful

          8  to them and they are grateful for the Council to

          9  allow us to tell you the results.

         10                 The end result is that it's in a

         11  landlord's best interest to permit pets for a myriad

         12  of reasons, and that the scientific evidence and the

         13  hard data has proved out that the concerns that

         14  landlords have by and large are unfounded or a

         15  misperception. There are a lot of myths involved,

         16  and that is not to minimize some of the issues that

         17  have been brought up here. And the issues that are

         18  brought up here are very important, and, so, as a

         19  by-product of the study we did, we have developed a

         20  program, the Companion Animal Renters Program, in

         21  which we work with landlords directly from all over

         22  the country. It's a free service, free to landlords,

         23  and which we do one-on-one consulting and we examine

         24  each landlord's specific situation to see if it's

         25  even viable to allow pets or any units to allow
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          2  pets, and it's not for everyone. But of those

          3  people, the majority of whom it is feasible and in

          4  their best interest to allow animals, we work one on

          5  one with them, with training and we supply them with

          6  tools for screening out bad tenants, bad people, not

          7  bad animals. And how to problem solve before there

          8  is an issue, such as the one raised earlier, about,

          9  well, what if you have an aggressive animal in the

         10  building?

         11                 So, in summary, I just want to say

         12  thank you, again, and I'll turn it over to Josh who

         13  can discuss the pertinent findings that affect

         14  landlords.

         15                 DR. J. FRANK: Hi. My name is Joshua

         16  Frank. Also from FIREPAW. Before I get into the

         17  results of our study, let me just highlight some

         18  results of other studies. Number one, it has been

         19  repeatedly shown that housing issues is a major

         20  cause of animal abandonment. It's also been shown in

         21  surveys that a lot of people who would like to take

         22  pets do not because of housing issues, and another

         23  important finding that's come up is that companion

         24  animals are perceived by the vast majority of people

         25  who have them to be members of the family. So this
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          2  is really is about excluding a member of the family,

          3  not something that people regard as property.

          4                 The majority of people who are

          5  involved in having these animals think of it as a

          6  family member.

          7                 Okay, to give a quick summary of our

          8  research results. By the way, one of the locations

          9  we looked at was New York City, so the results do

         10  include New York City although it was national. I

         11  won't focus on the things that don't apply so much.

         12  Basically we found that there was greater benefits

         13  than people would expect to allowing animals, from

         14  the landlords' perspective and lower costs. Some of

         15  the benefits might not apply to all New York City

         16  situations because of regulations such as higher

         17  rents, higher deposits. However, a lot of the

         18  benefits do. There was increased longevity in the

         19  tenants. One result was tenants stayed basically

         20  about double the amount of time who had animals,

         21  basically as it was described before, because

         22  they're grateful to have that place.

         23                 There was decreased marketing time to

         24  get tenants. There was increased advertising costs

         25  to get tenants. There was an increase in, I already
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          2  said the longevity of the tenants. There was an

          3  increase in the number of applicants received. There

          4  was a decrease in the amount of time it took to rent

          5  out a unit. So there were a lot of benefits.

          6                 But I think the more important thing

          7  is that the cost -- somebody mentioned that there is

          8  a lot of fear about allowing animals among

          9  landlords, and that's really what it is, fear and a

         10  misperception. We found that the cost, number one

         11  perceived cost was damaged. In fact, there was some

         12  type damage done. When you take overall damage, the

         13  damage done by people with animals was no higher

         14  than people without animals, not significantly

         15  higher, and then when you take into account

         16  children, there was no relationship at all. There is

         17  a relationship between having children and higher

         18  damage, but not having with pets.

         19                 Other issues, also were similar

         20  findings found about the noise complaints and so on.

         21  Much less than perceived, the problem was much lower

         22  than perceived, and really the benefits of having

         23  the animals clearly outweigh the cost for the

         24  landlord, not just for the tenant. And it's a

         25  win/win situation - it's good for the landlords,
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          2  it's good for the tenants and it's good for the

          3  animals, of course.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 Do we have any questions?

          8                 Council Member Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 I don't know if you were here earlier

         12  when I posed the question concerning the insurance

         13  part, because we're just labeling pets, companion

         14  pets, and your companion pet might be a little

         15  poodle, but my companion pet may be a pit bull. I'm

         16  wondering, what is your take on the fact that some

         17  people are saying, listen, if you were to have such

         18  type of pets as a pit or rottweiler, one of those

         19  dogs that are potentially dangerous to other people,

         20  what is your take on it in having some form of

         21  liability insurance?

         22                 DR. FRANK: I don't know the detail

         23  for the laws, but I think there is a requirement for

         24  insurance in general. I would not see anything wrong

         25  with requiring insurance for that.

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 I think it's much more about the dog

          3  and the species. I also think that a good way to

          4  address this is to aggressively promote spay/neuter,

          5  because these aggressive pit bulls and rottweilers

          6  are usually the unfixed animals, and that would

          7  definitely address most of the problems, is

          8  spay/neuter.

          9                 DR. P. FRANK: That landlords can and

         10  should require that the animals are spayed and

         11  neutered as a condition.

         12                 I did want to say that one of the

         13  landlord associations we're working with right now

         14  is in the State of Minnesota, and this landlord

         15  association is, it's over 2,000 members, having

         16  begun working with a non-profit organization that

         17  trains the animal guardians and the animals to be

         18  fit for apartment living. That's very, very

         19  important.

         20                 A rottweiler who lives out in the

         21  country in Upstate New York has to abide by very

         22  different rules and has a very different environment

         23  to respond to, as far as noise, sirens, et cetera,

         24  than if you take that same dog and you put him in

         25  New York City.
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          2                 So, one of the alternatives that

          3  landlords have is to contact us and we will put them

          4  in touch with organizations who can help train these

          5  tenants and their animals to be fit to live in these

          6  buildings with other animals in close proximity.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What you're

          8  saying is it's all well and good if you get

          9  cooperation from both sides, on all sides.

         10                 Just looking at the fact that I would

         11  like to have those folks who are fearful of those

         12  type dogs to be assured that they're not put in

         13  danger, and the landlord, I don't see him being able

         14  to force anyone to have insurance, unless there's

         15  some law or they have the right to deny such folks

         16  who have those pets.

         17                 What I'm looking at is some sort of a

         18  protection. I love pets. I have a cat, and I love

         19  pets, but I'm concerned about the wave of accidents

         20  and problems that we have had over the last couple

         21  of months, even across the country with dogs mauling

         22  children and so on. So I want to be assured that

         23  people get some sort of assurance of protection,

         24  with some form of insurance or something like that.

         25  And I want the landlords to not be in a position
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          2  where they can be sued also, that they allowed

          3  someone with such a dangerous dog in the building.

          4                 So, you know, I want you to think

          5  about that, and maybe you can give me some take on

          6  that.

          7                 DR. P. FRANK: Okay. Typically

          8  landlords, typically landlords have insurance for

          9  their buildings. They can get addendums add-ons to

         10  their policy if they permit pets. That's an extra

         11  cost. If the regulations in New York City would

         12  permit then those classed can be covered by the

         13  guardian of the animal rather than the landlord. But

         14  typically the landlord already has insurance to

         15  protect his building and protect liability if

         16  somebody should fall, et cetera, and many insurance

         17  companies for an extra premium will permit, will put

         18  that pet addendum on the insurance policy.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Which can

         20  then be passed on you're saying?

         21                 DR. P. FRANK: Yes. If New York City

         22  allows the landlord to pass that on by way of a

         23  deposit or extra pet rent.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,

         25  thank you, Madam Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 We have Susan Raskin and Ezra

          5  Goodman.

          6                 I'm going to ask folks to be mindful

          7  of the three-minute clock. We still have a whole lot

          8  of people that have to testify.

          9                 MR. GOODMAN: Good morning. I'm Ezra

         10  Goodman of the law firm of Szold and Brandwen. I'm

         11  testifying in opposition to Intro. No. 380, on

         12  behalf of East River Housing Corporation and Hillman

         13  Housing Corporation. These are co-ops with a total

         14  of approximately 2,500 apartments and 21 buildings

         15  located along Grand Street, Manhattan.

         16                 We also represent other co-ops

         17  opposed to the legislation, some of whom will be

         18  testifying separately, such as Penn South and

         19  Chelsea and the Amalgamated Housing in the Bronx.

         20                 The legislation is to permit some

         21  persons to keep dogs in their apartments without any

         22  regard for the wishes or welfare of their neighbors

         23  in the co-op who oppose having dogs in the building.

         24                 We believe that this proposed

         25  enactment and the 90-day pet rule to which it is to
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          2  be appended are fatally flawed because they failed

          3  to distinguish between rental buildings in which

          4  tenants may require legislative protections of this

          5  kind because they have no power to dictate pet

          6  policies and co-ops which are self-governing

          7  democracies in which the majority opinion of the

          8  residents after the presence of dogs should be

          9  honored without legislative interference.

         10                 East River and Hillman do not permit

         11  dogs. That policy is set forth in their leases, it

         12  is highly publicized to all new purchasers who are

         13  required to sign separate documents confirming the

         14  policy and it reflects the majority opinion of the

         15  cooperators in these developments, many of whom,

         16  perhaps even the majority, are seniors.

         17                 To these people the mere presence of

         18  dogs is very bothersome and often frightening. They

         19  do not want to share elevators with the dogs, they

         20  do not want to share hallways with their dogs, they

         21  do not want to have to put up with the noise caused

         22  by dogs, or with the filth that dogs and their

         23  owners leave behind them.

         24                 There is no real reasons why the

         25  desires of these persons should be thwarted by City
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          2  legislation. The cooperators can readily change the

          3  no dog policy if the majority opinion changes,

          4  electing a board that will pursue a new policy or by

          5  amending the corporate documents that permit dogs.

          6  That is the very essence of co-op living. The right

          7  to choose for yourself the lifestyle of your

          8  community.

          9                 The 90-day rule completely undermines

         10  the principles of the co-op by rewarding those who

         11  willfully violate the co-op's no pet policy and then

         12  because they are either clever or lucky beat the

         13  90-day rule and keep a dog in blatant defiance of

         14  all those cooperators who abide by the rules and

         15  have no dogs.

         16                 If the proposed amendment is passed,

         17  then that unfair situation in the co-ops will become

         18  even worse.

         19                 What is particularly galling to the

         20  co-op, is that this entire piece of legislation was

         21  originally enacted for a single reason, that has

         22  absolutely nothing to do with the governance of

         23  co-ops, it was passed because landlords who wanted

         24  to convert rental buildings sought to vacate and

         25  warehouse apartments by using boilerplate no pet
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          2  clauses in rental leases against tenants who have

          3  kept dogs for many years, and in fact, Council

          4  Member Manton, who was mentioned in one of the

          5  earlier testimonies, actually testified in that

          6  original legislative session, that the purpose of

          7  this 90-day pet rule was to eliminate evictions

          8  designed for the purpose of enhancing profits or

          9  conversions to co-ops.

         10                 That has no relevance to the

         11  conditions in an operating co-op with an elected

         12  resident Board of Directors such as East River and

         13  Hillman.

         14                 In sum, the 90-day statute should be

         15  amended, but the amendment should exclude co-ops

         16  from its application. At the very least, the statute

         17  should provide a mechanism by which a co-op can opt

         18  out and be exempted from its provisions if it is

         19  demonstrated that a majority of the shareholders are

         20  in favor of its no dog policy.

         21                 The proposed amendment of extending

         22  the scope of the statute serves only to make a bad

         23  statute worse, as applied to co-ops, and should be

         24  rejected in its present form. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. RASKIN: My name is Susan Raskin.

          3  My husband and I live in Mutual Redevelopment

          4  Houses, more familiarly known as "Penn South." This

          5  is a limited equity, moderate- to middle-income

          6  co-op in Manhattan. There I'm the Chair of the Co-Op

          7  Council.

          8                 There are many cooperators who

          9  believe, as I do, that co-ops should not be included

         10  in Intro. 380. Penn South is a democratic community.

         11  We voted by referendum on all major decisions

         12  affecting our co-op, such as submetering,

         13  co-generation, replacing windows, raises in our

         14  equity, and recently, and most importantly, we voted

         15  against going private or reconstituting, but to

         16  remain a limited equity co-op.

         17                 Just two months ago at our annual

         18  Board Elections, five candidates who were elected

         19  were committed to remaining a limited equity

         20  development. They were elected by a two to one

         21  majority vote.

         22                 Also, two years ago we voted to

         23  continue our policy of not allowing dogs in Penn

         24  South.

         25                 I am a senior, and I know that many
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          2  other older people do not want to be forced to use

          3  elevators alongside of dogs or to hear their barking

          4  in an apartment.

          5                 Many people have fears of dogs. And

          6  our dog policy is a large factor in their moving to

          7  Penn South. In fact, everyone, before accepting an

          8  apartment, signed an agreement acknowledging that

          9  dogs are not allowed.

         10                 In recent years the Housing Court was

         11  separated into two parts, landlord tenant and co-op

         12  housing, because they are considered different. The

         13  same situation should exist when it comes to dog

         14  policies.

         15                 We believe that co-ops must be

         16  allowed to continue their right to

         17  self-determination, and we urge that you recognize

         18  this fact, that co-ops should be exempt from the

         19  bill.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         22                 Do we have any questions?

         23                 Councilwoman Katz. She's bursting I

         24  see.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, I'm not
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          2  bursting.

          3                 As you saw the discussion up here I

          4  was trying to get a few things straight, and just

          5  for the record, I guess, right now the law in a

          6  co-op building is, right now, today, without us

          7  doing anything else, I have a no pet clause in my

          8  co-op. I buy a co-op, I walk in with my chiwowa the

          9  next day. I walk around the building, I walk it in

         10  the lobby, all this kind of stuff, it's open and

         11  notorious. On the fourth month, right now, today, if

         12  the co-op board doesn't enforce the provision, the

         13  law is today the pet can stay, correct?

         14                 MR. GOODMAN: That is correct, and

         15  that is what we're --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's your

         17  reading of the law.

         18                 MR. GOODMAN: No, that's the way the

         19  courts have interpreted it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         21                 MR. GOODMAN: Erroneously we believe,

         22  but that is at the moment a correct statement.

         23                 The courts have lumped the co-ops

         24  together with the rentals, without distinguishing

         25  between the two, and all the factors that we've
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          2  brought to your attention, including the original

          3  legislative history. Read it, it's very interesting.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. No, I was

          5  just trying to distinguish, because from your

          6  testimony, it almost sounded like it was testimony

          7  on the present law, as opposed to just being able to

          8  redo it with a new pet.

          9                 I just wanted to make that clear,

         10  that's why I started questioning with the Council

         11  what the law is today. So, thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         13  Member Stewart.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, Madam

         15  Chair.

         16                 I'm a little confused now because

         17  you're saying that the right to choose as far as a

         18  co-op owner is concerned, they decide that as being

         19  the owner of a co-op and they can decide whether

         20  they want to accept pets or not in that co-op

         21  establishment, and now you're saying that this new

         22  bill, this new law, would change all of that?

         23                 MR. GOODMAN: No. What I'm saying is

         24  that the original 90-day rule to which this is an

         25  amendment did not exempt co-ops. We believe it
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          2  should have exempted co-ops, and when the courts

          3  started misinterpreting the statute, as we see it,

          4  and applying it to co-ops, then the situation truly

          5  became intolerable. Because then you had people who

          6  were openly and notoriously violating that which

          7  they knew was something they were not supposed to

          8  do, getting away with it, because the way the courts

          9  have ruled the 90-day statute, if some maintenance

         10  person happens to be in your apartment and might

         11  hear a dog locked in a bedroom, that knowledge is

         12  imputed to the co-op and you lose on the 90-day pet

         13  rule.

         14                 So, you have an impossible situation

         15  where a majority of the cooperators do not want

         16  pets, dogs, the majority of the cooperators abide by

         17  those rules and have no dogs, a few violate the

         18  rules, a few get away with it because the way the

         19  Housing Courts are interpreting this rule and

         20  generally are constituted, and therefore the

         21  desires, the legitimate desires of the majority

         22  absolutely ignored.

         23                 I just think that this is an

         24  oversight. I think that this statute has no business

         25  regulating co-ops.
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          2                 Co-ops regulate themselves. They do

          3  it democratically, and they do it very, very well. I

          4  think co-ops function very efficiently in this City,

          5  especially co-ops like Penn South, like East River,

          6  like Hillman, where the voice of the cooperators is

          7  heard very loudly and clearly on many issues. This

          8  is an important issue, the seniors living in these

          9  buildings. They don't want to have to get into an

         10  elevator with a dog. It frightens them. And they

         11  should not be forced to get into an elevator with a

         12  dog just because somebody got away with beating the

         13  90-day rule, and that is the situation we have now,

         14  and that is the situation that we think needs to be

         15  corrected by the Council, and this is really the

         16  perfect opportunity to do it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In actuality

         18  what you're saying is that this new law does not

         19  really change anything, as far as that is concerned,

         20  the 90-day rule is concerned?

         21                 MR. GOODMAN: No, it makes it even

         22  worse, because now you're saying that the seniors,

         23  at least those seniors that choose to violate the

         24  rules of the co-op are automatically going to be

         25  allowed to have dogs without even having to go
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          2  through the 90-day rule. This amendment says that

          3  seniors can have dogs, period. And we are not

          4  discussing here the question of seniors or any

          5  person living in a rental development. I think if

          6  you listen to all the testimony that you've heard

          7  today, it all has to do with rentals, and we're not

          8  discussing what goes on in rentals, it may be that

          9  that type of protection is needed, and it may be

         10  that landlords use this type of eviction for the

         11  wrong purposes. That just doesn't apply to co-ops.

         12  So, what you're doing is you're taking a statute

         13  that shouldn't apply to co-ops in the first place,

         14  with this 90-day game that takes place, and now

         15  you're saying that seniors who want to have dogs in

         16  the co-op, and it's a minority in those in which the

         17  majority don't want dogs, can simply have it,

         18  without any regard to seniors such as the person who

         19  just testified who doesn't want to have a dog in the

         20  co-op and all the others like her.

         21                 You are saying that she must put up

         22  with dogs in the co-op merely because you're telling

         23  her that she has to, regardless of how she and her

         24  fellow cooperators feel about it, and I think that's

         25  wrong.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So the no-pet

          3  clause that we have in the current law right now, it

          4  was for 90 days?

          5                 MR. GOODMAN: Right. If you look at

          6  the legislative history, what happened was in the

          7  heyday of co-op conversion, landlords were looking

          8  for any excuse to evict tenants, and so they looked

          9  at their leases and low and behold they saw no-pet

         10  clauses in a lot of these boilerplate leases, and

         11  they started going after people that had pets for 20

         12  years because they wanted to evict them, vacate them

         13  and make the conversion to the co-ops easier.

         14                 The courts were upholding them

         15  because a lease is a lease. The City Council stepped

         16  into the matter and said in order to provide them

         17  with protection, that if the landlord didn't bring

         18  this action within 90 day, you could keep the pet

         19  and that protected people that had had pets for many

         20  years.

         21                 And we're not contesting the

         22  applicability or the wisdom of that as it applies to

         23  that situation or even to existing rental, what

         24  we're saying is that this has absolutely nothing to

         25  do from day one with co-ops, and it should have
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          2  nothing to do with co-ops today and not only do we

          3  think that this amendment should not apply to

          4  co-ops, but this entire statute should not apply to

          5  co-ops, it makes no logical sense to apply it to

          6  co-ops.

          7                 Why should you be allowed to have a

          8  dog in a co-op if you managed to find a lawyer that

          9  could beat the 90-day -- or a judge who will allow

         10  you to beat the 90-day rule, when all you've done is

         11  get away with a violation of something that

         12  everybody else adheres to?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         15                 Councilwoman Reyna.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair.

         18                 I'm just interesting in finding out,

         19  as far as those that don't abide by your rules, as

         20  far as the Board is concerned, there's a set

         21  document that people sign to confirm the fact that

         22  they understand they cannot have this pet?

         23                 MR. GOODMAN: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Even though you

         25  have law and order, people do break your rules?
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          2                 MR. GOODMAN: Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What is the

          4  procedure thereafter, if you do catch them?

          5                 MR. GOODMAN: The procedure is that

          6  eviction proceedings are brought against those

          7  persons when dogs are identified. And very often

          8  these cases are contested, usually on the basis of

          9  the 90-day rule. I kept this dog for 90 days, the

         10  maintenance person knew about it, this person knew

         11  about it, the handyman knew about it, and the courts

         12  are very, very reluctant, and I will say this and I

         13  think it's common knowledge, to evict people for any

         14  reason, and they're certainly reluctant to evict

         15  people based on dogs.

         16                 So, the result is that the courts I

         17  think bend over backwards to rule in favor of the

         18  residents and the fact that the 90-day rule is not

         19  complied with.

         20                 Again, I'm distinguishing between

         21  rentals and co-ops.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Just continue

         23  with that point.

         24                 MR. GOODMAN: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: The original
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          2  law never stated whether it was a rental or a co-op,

          3  it just stated a tenant will be protected?

          4                 MR. GOODMAN: That's correct.

          5  Originally the thought --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, it's left

          7  to be interpreted.

          8                 MR. GOODMAN: No. Unfortunately the

          9  courts have interpreted the word tenant to include

         10  cooperator, and we think that was a mistake on the

         11  part of the courts, but then they were faced with

         12  legislation that did not draw the distinction.

         13                 So what we are saying is that the

         14  legislation is a place to draw that valid

         15  distinction between co-ops, at least co-ops where

         16  there has been a demonstration that a majority of

         17  the cooperators do not want to have dogs. Penn South

         18  voted on this question within the last few years,

         19  and a majority, a substantial majority said no dog.

         20  Now, why shouldn't that be honored? Now, this is a

         21  co-op, if that's what the majority wants that's what

         22  the majority should have, and this entire 90-day

         23  rule, which becomes a game, it's a shell game, can I

         24  get away with a 90-day rule? That should not --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: My Chair has to
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          2  wrap up our Committee because we have another

          3  committee, so, I just wanted to ask you my last

          4  question.

          5                 As far as those that have won in

          6  court, do you register those pets? Not in Penn

          7  South?

          8                 MR. GOODMAN: Well, you know, it

          9  becomes a problem because there's a legal

         10  contradiction between having rules which regulate

         11  pets, while at the same time you have a rule that

         12  does not recognize the right of pets to be in the

         13  development in the first place.

         14                 So, those co-ops that have no-pet

         15  rules by and large --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm just

         17  referring to the one you just mentioned, Penn South,

         18  right? Correct?

         19                 MR. GOODMAN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: There's a

         21  no-pet rule, but once every five tenants there might

         22  be a person who gets away with the law after 90

         23  days, you see that they have a pet, you can't get

         24  them evicted because now they have the right to stay

         25  with their pet, do you register that pet?
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          2                 MR. GOODMAN: I don't know what you

          3  mean by "register." I mean, as far as we're

          4  concerned, the pet shouldn't have been there in the

          5  first place. The pet has no business being there

          6  now, and there is no official recognition that pets

          7  should be, that dogs should be in Penn South, or

          8  Amalgamated Housing or East River, with or without

          9  registration. That is the desire of the cooperators.

         10  This legislation thwarts it, we think that's wrong.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Well, just for

         12  the safety of the body, your co-op owners are

         13  concerned, it would be, I would think it would be

         14  better to know who has a pet --

         15                 MS. RASKIN: We know. There is a

         16  record on their case history. As a cooperator you

         17  have a record there. It does show dogs. And why you

         18  have it there, you lost in court or the person had a

         19  medical record saying they must have a dog. It's on

         20  record, but there's nothing else.

         21                 MR. GOODMAN: Well, I think the issue,

         22  again, respectfully, is not the registration of

         23  animals that shouldn't be there in the first place,

         24  what we're asking the Council to focus on is the

         25  fact that this legislation should draw a valid
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          2  distinction between co-ops and between rentals, and

          3  that's what we're asking for and we think there's no

          4  logical reason for it not to.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

          7  Chairwoman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I am now --

          9  I've just been told that they're throwing us out of

         10  here at 1:00. I thought we could go on all day. So

         11  I'm putting on a two-minute clock, reducing it from

         12  three to two, and I ask everyone, please adhere to

         13  the two minutes so that we can get in as many people

         14  as possible in the next hour. Thank you.

         15                 Darryl Vernon, Dr. Deborah Tanzer,

         16  and Susan Cohen. One of you decide who is going to

         17  start, identify yourself and proceed.

         18                 MR. VERNON: Honorable members of the

         19  Council, my name is Darryl Vernon. I am a lawyer

         20  with Vernon and Ginsberg. A substantial part of our

         21  practice is representing people with pets in their

         22  homes. I think the best I can do is try to address,

         23  number one, Council Member Katz' issue about the

         24  second pet, whether that is a more likely event,

         25  which I'd like to do, and also address the issue of
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          2  co-ops.

          3                 It is a myth that co-ops are some

          4  wonderful democratic society in which tenants need

          5  any less protection. There are cases that discuss

          6  this exact point and why was when we represented

          7  Carol Ramos back in 1984 when this law was first

          8  passed in Corlier versus Ramos, where the Court held

          9  plain as day that the pet law, the three-month rule,

         10  applies to co-op unit owners. One of the big reasons

         11  was that the Court held that co-op unit owners are

         12  in no less need of protection than other tenants.

         13                 Co-ops are essentially small

         14  municipalities that wish that they can govern

         15  themselves and be exempted times from various laws,

         16  but there are many cases that say this is just not

         17  so.

         18                 There are cases that have the

         19  warranty of habitability applied to co-ops. There

         20  are cases clearly that say that there are

         21  prohibitions against discrimination applied to

         22  co-ops, and if we didn't have that rule, a board

         23  several years ago would not have been fund liable

         24  when they discriminated in the application of co-op

         25  members.
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          2                 Therefore, there is no reason to

          3  exempt co-ops from the three-month rule. We have

          4  seen as many cases in co-ops where the case is

          5  brought because the Board member doesn't like the

          6  particular unit owner. It is the Board that is

          7  running things. It is not a vote that goes to all of

          8  the shareholders for each particular case. So,

          9  during the time of the particular board, cases get

         10  brought, shareholders are at the mercy of the

         11  tyranny of the majority which is what happens in

         12  these cases.

         13                 As for the second pet issue, as

         14  Council Member Katz asked, we do see that second

         15  cases are brought more often, and one of the reasons

         16  is that when you first move into a building, there

         17  is very little incentive for an owner to want to get

         18  out a tenant. However, with the advent of luxury

         19  deregulation in rent-regulated apartments, there is

         20  currently, for roughly the past decade, a tremendous

         21  financial incentive to get out tenants and use the

         22  second pet. It's a lot easier to use the second pet

         23  because now the person has grown attached to their

         24  home and to their pet. And the first pet did not

         25  matter because the market was different, you were
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          2  bringing that tenant in at a time that that was the

          3  agreed upon rent. But once the owner wants that rent

          4  to be raised, and wants the apartment to be taken

          5  out of rent regulations all together, they bring up

          6  the second pet when the tenant and the pets are most

          7  vulnerable.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          9                 Next.

         10                 DR. TANZER: My name is Dr. Deborah

         11  Tanzer, I'm a New York State Licensed Psychologist.

         12  I do writing and research, lecturing, TV

         13  appearances, on the relationship between humans and

         14  animals, and I have a clinical practice in

         15  psychotherapy.

         16                 I'm here to speak in support of

         17  Intro. 380 because of the enormous benefits it

         18  confers on the citizens of New York City, whether

         19  they live in rentals, co-ops or any other kinds of

         20  buildings.

         21                 The research literature, the

         22  scientific literature, is very clear about the

         23  benefits to people from having companion animals as

         24  is the clinical experience of myself and many, many

         25  other people.
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          2                 The health benefits have been talked

          3  about. There is one that has not been mentioned, is

          4  the survival after heart attacks is much higher for

          5  people who have had and continue to have a companion

          6  animal, triglycerides, arthritic conditions are

          7  helped by the presence of a companion animal as

          8  well.

          9                 The psychological benefits are

         10  enormous, particularly for a City like this where

         11  people live all too often in loneliness and

         12  isolation and seniors particularly crahoom, the

         13  companion animal becomes, in one study 70 percent of

         14  the people said that the companion animal was their

         15  only friend. Now, that makes a vast, vast difference

         16  in many, many, many lives.

         17                 The animal will give a sense of

         18  purpose to people's lives, a sense of usefulness,

         19  confers a role and an identity in the caretaking

         20  that is given to the animal, particularly again for

         21  seniors who have lost important people in their

         22  lives, often spouses, friends, jobs, the identity

         23  that comes from being a family caretaker and a

         24  professional which is often lost. So, this pet

         25  companion animal fills a tremendous, tremendous void
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          2  that's there. It has motivating affect, it gets

          3  people up in the morning, they have a structure to

          4  their day, they get outside, particularly dog

          5  walkers, they meet other people, the animal becomes

          6  a social lubricant, in terms of interactions with

          7  many people, which is vitally, vitally important.

          8                 Now, when the animal dies, the grief

          9  that is felt always when an animal, and a family

         10  member, as has been pointed out, when the grief that

         11  is then felt becomes multiplied, if the person is

         12  not allowed to get a new animal, so that there are

         13  the negative effects of grief which affect the

         14  immune system, are linked with cancer rates, higher

         15  cancer rates, those kinds of things are denied, the

         16  benefits of healing from those are denied to people

         17  if they are not allowed to have a subsequent pet.

         18                 Furthermore --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Will you sum

         20  up?

         21                 DR. TANZER: We live, unfortunately,

         22  in a social system where there is very little

         23  support for grieving over an animal. It's a cause of

         24  ridicule often, and lack of empathy on the part of

         25  many people, and for this reason also it is
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          2  important that both provisions of this bill be

          3  passed for the benefit, as I said, of all members of

          4  our community, no matter what kind of housing they

          5  may live in.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          8                 Next.

          9                 DR. COHEN: Good morning. I'm Dr.

         10  Susan Cohen. I'm the Director of Counseling at the

         11  Animal Medical Center, where I've been for 21 years.

         12  I'm going to skip part of this presentation, but you

         13  have it up there.

         14                 The most important message is that

         15  millions of normal healthy people love and benefit

         16  from pets. In fact, 59 percent of all American

         17  households have a pet and most call their pet a

         18  family member.

         19                 My own -- the statement "my pet is a

         20  member of my family," is more than hype. My own

         21  research has randomly selected people to compare

         22  their closest pet with their closest human family.

         23  The results show that people put the pets firmly

         24  inside the family circle. People say that within the

         25  family, pets are more likely than human beings to
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          2  give as much help as they receive. If a doctor were

          3  to tell them that their pet was making them ill,

          4  virtually all of them said they would endure any

          5  treatment no matter how expensive or unpleasant to

          6  keep their pet. In fact, they joke they were a lot

          7  less likely to keep a person who was making them

          8  sick. Perhaps that's because they also report that

          9  human family members are far more likely to

         10  criticize them in a way that makes them feel bad

         11  than their pets are.

         12                 New York City has characteristics

         13  which make the person pet relationship more intense

         14  and important, but which also threaten it. The

         15  diverse community in urban life strengthen the bond

         16  because many residents have left their original home

         17  and often their families to make a life here. They

         18  arrive. They settle into small apartments and

         19  buildings full of strangers. Living in such close

         20  quarters with a pet enhances the bond.

         21                 New Yorkers create households that

         22  may look different from those of 30 years ago. There

         23  are fewer children, more adults work outside the

         24  home. Urbanites get pets in part to battle

         25  loneliness at home, and then they learn that their
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          2  pets are a whole array of social contact.

          3                 Twenty years ago the bond between

          4  people and pets was threatened by a tight housing

          5  market. I personally counseled a score of people

          6  forced to euthanize their pets because they would

          7  lose their homes if they didn't.

          8                 At that time the City Council came to

          9  the rescue of established tenants. Now we see a new

         10  threat. Landlords, co-op lords and other powerful

         11  entities are moving against responsible pet families

         12  by changing rules.

         13                 According to a national survey,

         14  landlord problems are the number two reason dogs are

         15  surrendered, and New York City is a City where

         16  two-thirds of the households live in multi-family

         17  buildings.

         18                 One more paragraph. Pets are an

         19  important part of New York City life. They provide

         20  companionship, connections and health.

         21                 Twenty years ago the City Council

         22  stepped in to protect the rights of tenants with

         23  pets. Today we ask you to support this proposal to

         24  keep pets in our lives.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 Council Member Stewart.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes. Thank

          5  you, Madam Chair.

          6                 I believe in the question of having

          7  pets, but I'm kind of concerned that if the members

          8  of a co-op sign an agreement to not have pets, why

          9  should a person who subsequently break that

         10  agreement have the rights over someone who signed an

         11  agreement?

         12                 You know, I love to be in a situation

         13  -- I can't see how you can have the cake and eat it

         14  too in this sense. I would love to be in a building

         15  with pets and all of that, but if all of us agreed

         16  not to have pets and someone subsequently later

         17  decided to break that agreement, I don't see why

         18  that person doesn't have more rights than the person

         19  who did not want to have pets?

         20                 MR. VERNON: The answer is that when

         21  you purchase a co-op, you did not essentially agree

         22  to everything in that proprietary lease, for one big

         23  reason: That proprietary lease is a fairly standard

         24  form. It is very difficult to change, so when you

         25  purchase your co-op, you don't get the right to say
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          2  can you change this clause from me.

          3                 So, the way the law is written, it

          4  does not take away the right of a co-op or a

          5  landlord where the tenant has agreed in his lease

          6  not to have a pet to enforce it, you just have to do

          7  it promptly, and if you do it within the three

          8  months, you have satisfied the law. So it is no

          9  different than a regular tenant or a rent regulated

         10  tenant. There are clauses in leases that are not

         11  enforceable. There's a clause in co-op leases that

         12  prohibit roommates, that don't let you bring in

         13  anyone you would like, but that has been found to be

         14  unenforceable, despite the fact that everyone in

         15  this town agrees to it under the real property law,

         16  and this is a similar law that there are certain

         17  things that they can't, they just can't shove down

         18  your throat, to put it simple.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You need to

         20  identify yourself.

         21                 MR. VERNON: Sorry. I'm Darryl Vernon.

         22                 DR. COHEN: You know, I want to, if

         23  you don't mind, to also get back to your issue or

         24  people or pets --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Identify
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          2  yourself.

          3                 DR. COHEN: I'm sorry. Dr. Susan Cohen

          4  of Social Work at the Animal Medical Center. I want

          5  to get back also to this issue of justice in this

          6  regard, but also in terms of having a dangerous dog

          7  in the building. I'm not an animal behaviorist, I'm

          8  a human behaviorist, but I would say this: If

          9  there's anyone in a living situation that's making

         10  life impossible for everyone else, whether that's a

         11  dog or a person, the first thing you do is work with

         12  that dog or person, and if that doesn't work out

         13  then that dog or person has to go.

         14                 I don't think you make distinctions

         15  based on breeds, you make, or color or anything

         16  else, you make distinctions based on behavior.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 Rudeane Murray and Ed Yaker.

         20                 Please start.

         21                 MR. YAKER: My name is Ed Yaker. I am

         22  here in two capacities, I'm Co-Chairman of the

         23  Coordinating Council of Cooperatives and President

         24  of Amalgamated Houses.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You can only
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          2  be here in one capacity. He's going to do

          3  Amalgamated.

          4                 MR. YAKER: Well, since Amalgamated is

          5  a member of CCC, I'll use that example.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That's the

          7  way we have the two of you there.

          8                 MR. YAKER: First of all, all the

          9  members of CCC were built as cooperatives, many of

         10  us are limited equity co-ops, Amalgamated Houses is

         11  the oldest limited equity co-op in the country.

         12  Amalgamated has been providing affordable housing to

         13  New Yorkers for more than 75 years.

         14                 I echo Mr. Goodman's words earlier on

         15  co-op democracy. Contrary to the gentleman who just

         16  spoke, our co-ops are democracies. It is not a small

         17  board shoving opinions down people's throats.

         18                 Fifty people out of 1,500

         19  shareholders in Amalgamated can sign a petition to

         20  place a referendum question on the ballot which then

         21  gets determined by a majority of cooperators.

         22  Democracy works in our member co-op.

         23                 Some members of the CCC allow dogs,

         24  some members do not. That's democracy. The City

         25  Council should not be undermining local community
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          2  democracy.

          3                 Second point I'd like to make is,

          4  many Councilpeople think of this as a pro-senior

          5  legislation. That's because you haven't heard from

          6  the seniors who are uncomfortable living with dog

          7  owners as neighbors. They don't even know this bill

          8  is out there.

          9                 People who are living in dog free

         10  environments don't know you're going to take that

         11  right away from them. The pro-ownership lobby is

         12  organized, they know about it, they're here.

         13                 The seniors who are comfortable

         14  living in buildings who don't have dogs, don't even

         15  know this argument exists.

         16                 You know, there's no option for --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Please sum

         18  up. Your time ran out.

         19                 MR. YAKER: The other point is the

         20  notion that the courts are a resource, either a

         21  nuisance clause? Forget about it. It is almost going

         22  to be impossible to get out.

         23                 Second of all, owner knowledge. Put

         24  in a clause, if this has to apply, putting the

         25  burden on the resident who informed the owner so
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          2  that the resident doesn't show up in court and say a

          3  porter in a community with 2,000 families saw me

          4  with the dog, therefore the owner knew for three

          5  months. That's ludricrous. If our general managers

          6  know, they can act on behalf of the owner.

          7                 If some porter or handyman may know,

          8  and they haven't even been called to testify but

          9  judges have allowed it, you're not really getting

         10  owner knowledge.

         11                 So, assure owner knowledge, give us

         12  something better than the courts for getting rid of

         13  nuisance dogs, and allow, most fundamentally, allow

         14  democratically governed co-ops to continue

         15  democracy.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         17                 MS. MURRAY: My name is Rudeane

         18  Murray. I am from Amalgamated Housing Cooperatives.

         19  I am also the Chairperson of the NORC Advisory

         20  Council. NORC stands for Naturally Occurring

         21  Retirement Communities.

         22                 We just had our advisory committee

         23  meeting and we discussed this bill. We have lived in

         24  amalgamated basically dog-free. In fact, our

         25  Committee speaking for the Amalgamated Park
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          2  community has stated "we would not be happy. We are

          3  self government, we determine whether we want dogs

          4  or not. We don't go by the election after election."

          5  This has been 75 years of a no-dog policy and we'd

          6  like to remain as a co-op with a no-dog policy.

          7                 Most of them are afraid of dogs. Most

          8  of them have had experience of walking out into one

          9  particularly block in our community where there are

         10  two private buildings, which you can smell before

         11  you approach it, and you walk, you take your life in

         12  your hands.

         13                 I'm here representing Amalgamated

         14  NORCs, I'm speaking for the seniors, we do not wish

         15  to have dogs. We've lived without them and this is

         16  the way we'd like it.

         17                 So, we are a self-governed, and if it

         18  is going to change, we will put a referendum and see

         19  where the community comes from. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21                 MR. YAKER: Can I add one point? We're

         22  all familiar with the pooper-scooper law that's been

         23  on the books for many years. It may work in parts of

         24  Manhattan. The block Rudeane mentioned, Governeur

         25  Avenue, walk down that one block and you will know
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          2  the pooper-scooper law does not work in all parts of

          3  our City, and it's almost impossible to say the law

          4  says. The law says you need a sanitation policeman

          5  to physically observe it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, thank

          7  you.

          8                 Council Member Brewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm sorry. Can

         10  I ask you a very quick question? I know time is of

         11  the essence.

         12                 I've talked extensively to Marianne

         13  Wasserman about this, I know that it is of concern,

         14  but when you have dogs that are in your facility, in

         15  Amalgamated -- first of all, Amalgamated is terrific

         16  because you're all co-ops. That's different than in

         17  the situation on the west side where there are many

         18  mixed rentals and cooperators, so that presents a

         19  different kind of problem. You're the good guys in

         20  all of this.

         21                 MR. YAKER: Maybe we can make an

         22  exemption for 100 percent owner occupied.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I mean these

         24  are all issues to be looked at. But when you have a

         25  problem dog, how do you deal with it now, number
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          2  one?

          3                 And number two, regarding the pooper

          4  scooper and the avenue, I strongly urge you to get

          5  sanitation police there and believe me, you'd be

          6  surprised at how fast those pooper scooper laws

          7  work.

          8                 MR. YAKER: You'd be surprised at how

          9  slow they work.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         11                 Well, we've had some success with

         12  that. The question is what about the first question

         13  with problem dogs? How do you deal with it?

         14                 MR. YAKER: We attempt to enforce our

         15  policy by bringing people, you know, first notifying

         16  them that there is no dog policy that they have

         17  signed a separate paper for before moving in. You

         18  know, we contact our attorneys.

         19                 The problem we've had in cases is the

         20  court says a porter saw, you know, and they don't

         21  even produce the porter to testify, someone says a

         22  porter saw me more than -- you know, within the

         23  90-day period, therefore the owner knew.

         24                 If you can assure us that the owner

         25  truly knows, we will attempt to enforce our policy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          3                 The other question is, do you have a

          4  lot of problem dogs?

          5                 MR. YAKER: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          7                 MR. YAKER: Because we do enforce the

          8  policy. But one of the things in here is, anyone 62

          9  or older will now have the right regardless of the

         10  wishes of their neighbors.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right.

         12  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         14                 Jenny Lauri, Meena Alagappan and

         15  Matthew Nolto. It's Jenny, and obviously she's there

         16  somewhere.

         17                 MS. LAURI: Okay, my name is Jenny

         18  Lauri. I'm the Director of Met Council on Housing,

         19  which is a tenants' rights organization. It's been

         20  around for close to 50 years, and was very

         21  supportive when the pet law was first passed 20

         22  years ago.

         23                 I'd just like to focus my testimony

         24  on two issues. One is that I think real estate

         25  conditions today for tenants are very similar to the
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          2  way they were 20 years ago when the first pet law

          3  came into existence. Thanks to the weakening of the

          4  rent law, if a landlord of a rent regulated building

          5  can get a rent, can get a rent on a vacant apartment

          6  over $2,000 a month, the landlord can decontrol the

          7  apartment and rent it to anyone for any amount of

          8  money without any lease requirements.

          9                 In addition, in neighborhoods where

         10  the landlord can't get $2,000 a month, the landlord

         11  can get at least a minimum 20 percent rent increase

         12  on a vacant apartment and a much higher rent

         13  increase if the previous tenant had been the

         14  apartment for a long time. Which means that

         15  landlords have very high incentive for getting out

         16  elderly long-term tenants, and the pet law as it

         17  currently works, gives them a perfect excuse to do

         18  that.

         19                 They use lots of excuses. Pet law,

         20  the way it works now is if the pet dies, the tenant

         21  goes out and gets a replacement pet, the landlord

         22  has a window of opportunity for evicting that pet.

         23                 Most of the tenants that we talk to

         24  on our hot line don't ever get to court, so the

         25  issue of whether the court enforces the nuisance pet
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          2  law or the pet law at all is moot for most tenants,

          3  because most tenants can't afford the thousands of

          4  dollars they have to pay in a retainer to a private

          5  attorney to represent them in this issue. So it's

          6  not an issue for them. They just get rid of the pet

          7  or move out less often, but more likely they get rid

          8  of the pet, give it to a shelter, try to find a

          9  friend, whatever.

         10                 The other issue that I'd like to talk

         11  about is that I listened very carefully to Frank

         12  Ricci's testimony today, I don't see that the RSA,

         13  which is the biggest lobbyist for landlords in New

         14  York City, I don't see the RSA really objecting to

         15  the bill on any grounds but they'll allow pets if

         16  you give them the right to extract more money from

         17  tenants. And it seems to me that there's an

         18  opportunity here in the negotiated bill that could

         19  pass. Thanks.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21                 MS. ALAGAPPAN: Hello. My name is

         22  Meena Alagappan. I'm the Chair of the Committee on

         23  Legal Issues Pertaining to Animals for the

         24  Association of the Bar of the City of New York.

         25                 To my left is Matthew Nolto, who is
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          2  the Chair of the Committee on Legal Problems of the

          3  Aging of the New York City Bar Association.

          4                 Our committees have joined together

          5  to express our strong approval of Intro. 380, with

          6  just two valuable objectives. I'll first discuss the

          7  duration of tenancy amendment and our approval of

          8  that, and then Mat Nolto will address the senior

          9  citizen provision.

         10                 The legislative history of the 1983

         11  pet law reveals with the companionship and security

         12  provided by a household animal are compelling. Thus

         13  a person's right in general to have a companion

         14  animal is as important of a right to have a

         15  particular animal.

         16                 Once their required three months

         17  elapses that right is in general, not just for a

         18  particular companion animal. Judicial decisions have

         19  varied in their interpretation of this point,

         20  indicating a need for clarification.

         21                 Before 1996, courts considering the

         22  1983 pet law generally held or implied the pet

         23  clause after three months was intended to apply for

         24  the duration of the tenancy.

         25                 One 1996 appellate decision, however,
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          2  held that when a building owner fails to commence

          3  suit within the required three-month period, it's

          4  not the lease provision itself that's waived, but

          5  the enforcement of the lease provision against that

          6  particular pet.

          7                 Yet, more recently still, one

          8  appellate division case implied that once three

          9  months have passed, the clause may be waived for all

         10  future pets during the tenancy.

         11                 In short, there is at least some

         12  controversy over this issue, the required

         13  clarification of the original intent of the law.

         14                 Our committees believe that the

         15  proposed modification complies with the intended

         16  meaning of a 1983 pet law.

         17                 I'll now turn it over to Matt Nolto

         18  to discuss the senior citizen amendment.

         19                 MR. NOLTO: Thank you, Meena. My name

         20  is Matthew Nolto. I'm the Chair of the Problems of

         21  the Aging Committee at the City Bar. I am here to

         22  speak on behalf of seniors, although I do appreciate

         23  animal lovers. I'm an animal lover myself. Our

         24  committee focuses on large issues affecting the

         25  elderly in New York City.
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          2                 With regard to any comments that were

          3  made so far about seniors, the majority of them not

          4  wanting to have pets, my committee is not familiar

          5  with any research that confirms that. My committee

          6  is full of phone calls and advocates and attorneys

          7  who are concerned about protecting the elderly

          8  threats with connection with their pets. In fact, we

          9  do a lot of state plan drafting dealing with

         10  distributions of assets to protect pets, not always

         11  people, but pets. That communicates to us this is

         12  certainly a major issue for seniors.

         13                 The aspect to the amendment that

         14  provides a person 62 years or older shall not be

         15  denied occupancy in or subject to eviction from a

         16  multiple dwelling on the sole ground that such a

         17  person harbors or will harbor a household pet of

         18  pets, the harboring of which is not prohibited by

         19  any provision of the law is important.

         20                 Under the proposed amendment, the

         21  senior citizen will not be required to prove the

         22  animal has been kept for three months, as we know.

         23  The proposed amendment is designed in part to

         24  protect senior citizens from having to make a

         25  heart-wrenching or unfair choice between giving up
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          2  their pets, often their primary or sole companions,

          3  and moving out of their apartments severely

          4  disrupting their lives.

          5                 Additionally, approximately 40,000

          6  homeless dogs and cats are killed each year in New

          7  York City's animal shelters, too often because not

          8  enough homes are available for them.

          9                 Numerous studies do show, as have

         10  been repeated many times today, of the joint benefit

         11  between animal and seniors of the relationship that

         12  they have, particularly when seniors are living

         13  alone.

         14                 In this in particular, most of the

         15  elderly people that we see in our committee are

         16  living alone and don't have any even remote family

         17  members and a few friends, as a support network, and

         18  that is the biggest reason why they want to have

         19  animals kept in their house.

         20                 If this legislation does not pass, I

         21  feel that they will be vulnerable to having this

         22  very important part of their lives removed and

         23  perhaps being removed from their limited housing

         24  stock.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 Thank you. There are no questions.

          5                 Karen Copeland. Diane West and Dr.

          6  John Sangiorgio. When you sit down, tell me how to

          7  pronounce your name.

          8                 While they're being seated, let me

          9  just tell you we have a little conference at 12:30.

         10  There are some people that might want to go to the

         11  press conference, but we also -- I will continue

         12  taking testimony until 1:00, if folks stay. If

         13  everyone decides to up and leave, I'm not going to

         14  sit here and twiddle my thumbs but if you do that,

         15  again, bear in mind that at 1:00 there's another

         16  committee meeting in this room.

         17                 Will one of you start?

         18                 DR. SANGIORGIO: Good morning. My name

         19  is John Sangiorgio. I'm a practicing veterinarian on

         20  Staten Island. I'm a member of the executive board

         21  of the Veterinary Medical Association of New York

         22  City. The Veterinary Medical Association of New York

         23  City represents over 200 practicing veterinarians in

         24  the City.

         25                 Veterinarians are in the front line
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          2  of animal care. We, as a group, see hundreds of

          3  animals a day, and just as pediatricians could

          4  evaluate the level of child care that children are

          5  given, we can evaluate the level of care given to

          6  animals. We find the great majority of animals for

          7  which we are cared for responsibly. We feel that

          8  responsible pet ownership should not be punished by

          9  eviction.

         10                 The veterinarians of the City of New

         11  York join animal lovers in giving their official

         12  support to Intro. 380, and we urge our City Council

         13  representatives to join us in this support. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         16                 Anyone.

         17                 MS. COPELAND: Yes, hi. My name is

         18  Karen Copeland. I am an attorney who specializes in

         19  representing people facing eviction for having

         20  animals, and as such I'm pretty familiar with

         21  administrative codes 27-2009 and I thoroughly

         22  support passage of introduction law 380 for many

         23  reasons, both emotional, which has been touched

         24  upon, as far as health issues, which have been

         25  touched upon by other people here giving testimony.
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          2                 In terms of the law that currently

          3  exists, Introduction 380 only maintains the status

          4  quo. If people have had dogs and the no pet clause

          5  has been deemed waived by operation of the pet law

          6  in the past, they can have another dog if something

          7  happens to the dog to which the no pet clause was

          8  originally waived.

          9                 The new law is consistent with the

         10  language and spirit of the original law, pet law

         11  administrative code 27-20009 in that it specifically

         12  mentions that it covers people who have had pet or

         13  pets and that harbor or have harbored pet or pets.

         14  So, clearly, even the original law, in my opinion,

         15  foresaw people looking for replacement pets and they

         16  would be covered by that.

         17                 For many years, some 15 years the

         18  courts had always interpreted the New York City pet

         19  law to include replacement pets. It's only since the

         20  appellate case in 1998 that the courts decided that

         21  replacement pets might not be included under the

         22  original law.

         23                 I have an example of a client, she

         24  couldn't be here today because she was too ill.

         25  She's a woman who recently got a notice to cure, for
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          2  having a pet. This woman's name is Charlotte Hobard,

          3  and she told me I could use her name. She had a dog

          4  for seven years, she kept, with the permission of

          5  her landlord, because as a 70-year-old woman she

          6  also suffered from serious emphysema and chronic

          7  depression, and her dog died in July, she got a call

          8  from the landlord, several calls, saying please come

          9  in to speak to the landlord, and he said, gosh, he

         10  was so concerned, he hadn't seen her around the

         11  neighborhood with her dog, which happened to be a

         12  pit bull, and wondered what on earth could have

         13  happened to it and she tearfully told the tale of

         14  how her dog had recently died and she was extremely

         15  upset about it, and the landlord told her, well, you

         16  know, he's here to be her friend and they can all be

         17  friends, and that he gave her a notice to cure to

         18  remove the second dog, which was a replacement dog

         19  which happened to be a tiny chiwowa, and she is now

         20  in litigation over whether or not this 70-year-old

         21  woman with emphysema can keep a tiny chiwowa after

         22  having had a pitbull in her apartment for seven

         23  years.

         24                 So that case really isn't that

         25  atypical. As there are people who have had dogs for
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          2  many years, obviously they have a very special

          3  connection with them and for many reasons they

          4  anticipate that they'll be able to keep the dog

          5  throughout their lives and then are forced to

          6  litigate questions that --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, could

          8  you sum up, please?

          9                 MS. COPELAND: Yes, okay. I'm sorry. I

         10  will just mention, the courts have specifically said

         11  that the co-op board, shareholder relationship is

         12  the landlord tenant relationship, so really, they

         13  shouldn't be looking for any specific special

         14  treatment because they're a co-op. The courts say

         15  they're just the same as the landlord tenant

         16  relationship.

         17                 The co-ops can't all get together --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You really

         19  have to finish up.

         20                 MS. COPELAND: That's all I have --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         22                 MS. COPELAND: In wrapping up I would

         23  say, anyone who thinks they have to give up a dog

         24  because their landlord won't allow it should speak

         25  to an attorney.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 Next.

          5                 MS. WEST: Good afternoon. My name is

          6  Diane West.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do you want

          8  to pull that mic a little closer to you.

          9                 MS. WEST: Is that better? My name is

         10  Diane West, and I publish New York Tails Magazine.

         11  Good afternoon.

         12                 The idea of a law protecting the

         13  rights of pet owners and non-pet owners alike was

         14  first brought before this Council years ago by

         15  former Council Member Stanley Michels, Chair of the

         16  Environmental Protection Committee and senior member

         17  of the Housing and Buildings Committee. I had the

         18  privilege of serving on the Councilman's staff back

         19  then and witnessed this proposal had to countless

         20  constituents.

         21                 Now as publisher of New York Tails

         22  Magazine I witness the heartbreak and frustration

         23  stemming from the continued need of this proposal to

         24  become law.

         25                 Not a month goes by where my staff or
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          2  I aren't contacted by readers throughout the City

          3  and the five boroughs who are being forced to choose

          4  between their pets or their apartment.

          5                 Our editorial advisor Karen Copeland,

          6  whom you just heard from, fields a number of these

          7  questions after, however, there is no easy

          8  resolution.

          9                 Councilwoman Melinda Katz' Intro. 380

         10  is a fair sensible law. It says the resident who has

         11  proven to be a responsible, conscientious pet owner

         12  can retain that privilege for the duration of their

         13  tenancy.

         14                 It also protects seniors that own

         15  pets from eviction or housing denial. Often a pet is

         16  the only family a senior has.

         17                 Landlords are protected under Intro.

         18  380. It clearly spells out that a pet-owning tenant

         19  loses his or her right to keep a pet if the pet

         20  damages building property. The same thing with

         21  tenants and neighbors, they are protected. The pet

         22  owning tenant does not have the right to keep a pet

         23  that is a nuisance or interferes with the health,

         24  safety or welfare of a tenant. That's clearly

         25  spelled out.
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          2                 Just in summary, Intro. 380 is the

          3  perfect alignment with the City's own mandate to

          4  become a no kill city in four years time. More homes

          5  for the City's cats and dogs mean less in the

          6  shelters. It's renewed hope that we come before you

          7  with Intro. 380. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          9                 Thank all of you.

         10                 Janet Weintraub, Jill Ragovin, Janet

         11  Roth.

         12                 Why doesn't one of you start.

         13                 MS. ROTH: Okay, I'll do it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Introduce

         15  yourself.

         16                 MS. ROTH: Hi. My name is Janet Roth,

         17  and I thank you for having this hearing.

         18                 I live in a rent stabilized building.

         19  I lived in the building before I adopted my pet, who

         20  lived with me for ten years, he was a Golden

         21  Retriever. Now what I see in the building is, I have

         22  a rent stabilized apartment, are people moving into

         23  the building, who were not in the building, and

         24  whose apartments have been de-regulated, having pets

         25  brought in. I see people who are living in the
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          2  building, like myself, who do not want to hire an

          3  attorney or who are worried about losing their

          4  apartment, not being able to adopt pets. So, I see

          5  the unfairness of this in buildings, so legislation

          6  is obviously needed to make sure that there is a

          7  fairness throughout the City that allows people who

          8  are in a stabilized apartment, as well as

          9  destabilized apartments.

         10                 Number two is, I spoke to Gifford

         11  Miller when he was campaigning and I said, I would

         12  love to adopt a pet. And he said I adopt a pet. I

         13  said, well, I don't have the right to adopt a pet.

         14  So, that's number two.

         15                 And number three is, we have a huge

         16  obesity problem in this City. I just finished

         17  co-writing a book on childhood obesity, if we get

         18  kids out walking dogs, we get them away from their

         19  computers, we get a healthy response and we don't

         20  need to sue junkfood manufacturers.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         23                 MS. RAGOVIN: Good afternoon. My name

         24  is Jill Ragovin.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Pull that mic
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          2  close to you, please.

          3                 MS. RAGOVIN: Good afternoon. My name

          4  is Jill Ragovin. I live in Manhattan. I've lived in

          5  my building for 28 years, I have had two dogs, of

          6  which my pet LuLu just died three months ago, after

          7  14 years.

          8                 There have been tons of people in my

          9  building that have had dogs, there are other people

         10  in the same situation as me that have lost a dog,

         11  and we would like, as well as myself, to be able to

         12  replace the dog.

         13                 I lost a son. I can't replace him. I

         14  want to be able to replace my pet, who was a big

         15  part of our family. She helped me get through my

         16  son's loss. Helped my son get through everything. My

         17  husband as well, and it's just very lonely, it

         18  leaves us with an empty heart, and she was part of

         19  our family, and I want to be able to go out and

         20  replace her and live very happily, the way we had

         21  been for the past 17 years in the building with a

         22  pet. And my building was pet-friendly from day one.

         23  And because of the situation that happened two years

         24  ago, the landlord now is hungry and he wants us that

         25  have been in the building so long out. And I don't
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          2  think that's a reason for it. We should be able to

          3  replace a dog, and also, if people are older, as a

          4  companion, it's very important.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          7                 MS. WEINTRAUB: Hi. My name is Janet

          8  Weintraub. I'd like to thank those who made this

          9  hearing finally happen, those who came to hear,

         10  those who came to speak, the press.

         11                 If you have children or

         12  grandchildren, God bless you. We should all be so

         13  lucky.

         14                 Not all of us have been, so we have

         15  dogs. That's Cookie, we lost her at nine from

         16  cancer, though we tried valiantly to save her, and

         17  that's Buddy, he died two years ago, he was 17, and

         18  we should have been buying him a car, not burying

         19  him. They're smiling because they're looking at us.

         20                 Anyway, you might think that children

         21  and dogs don't equate, but I believe they do. Dogs,

         22  like children, give us joy and laughter, they make

         23  us families, and they turn houses into homes. They

         24  give us comfort in difficult times, like these, God

         25  knows. They get us out of the house, they help us
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          2  interact. Children, pets, same coin, different side,

          3  it's all about love, and humanity.

          4                 What more can I say? I can tell you

          5  we're on our third dog in 20 years. When we moved

          6  into our building pets weren't an issue. Now that

          7  we're on the verge of losing our dog Chester. And

          8  this is Chester, the ragamuffin that they found

          9  wandering the streets of Hoboken, dyed purple, to

         10  the happy boy who graduated from the ASPCA. Now that

         11  we're on the verge of losing Chester to cancer, they

         12  tell us we can't have another, and we can't afford

         13  to move.

         14                 The City is moving towards a very

         15  humane no kill pet policy in shelters, supported by

         16  this very Council, but if people can't have them,

         17  where will they go?

         18                 That pets provide unconditional love,

         19  joy and laughter is a good thing, and not just for

         20  their owners. Check out the children watching

         21  outside the dog runs some time, or watch the way

         22  people smile when they pass a cute dog on the

         23  street. A City without dogs is unthinkable,

         24  unloving, cold.

         25                 Unfortunately, my husband and I were
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          2  never blessed with kids. The only family we've ever

          3  known is our pets. We're sure our opponents have

          4  their side, it's just hard to believe it's more

          5  important. So, landlords, money, or love? The choice

          6  is yours. All we can do is ask, hope and pray,

          7  please don't take our love away.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         10  Almost makes me want to go out and get another dog.

         11                 Linda Bresch, FernWood Mitchell, and

         12  Garo, I think that's the first name, Alexanian.

         13                 I think we have Saul and Linda, but I

         14  would ask only one of you to testify.

         15                 Someone can begin. Identify yourself.

         16  I guess we'll go with ladies first.

         17                 MS. BRESCH: Dear Council Members --

         18  I'll read my statement, it's very brief. My name is

         19  Linda Bresch, and I reside in a co-op apartment on

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Talk into the

         22  mic, please.

         23                 MS. BRESCH: Sorry. My name is Linda

         24  Bresch. I reside in a co-op apartment on Fifth

         25  Avenue.
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          2                 Approximately seven years ago when we

          3  became empty nesters, my husband and I moved backed

          4  to the city. Two years ago we both retired from our

          5  respective jobs, my husband from patent law, and I

          6  from teaching. Following our inclinations, I started

          7  volunteer work in the adoptions department of the

          8  ASPCA, and my husband started volunteer work for the

          9  Bar Association.

         10                 During this time we both developed a

         11  desire to have the companionship of a pet. This is

         12  also the first time in our married lives that we

         13  have the time to devote to animal care.

         14                 I came home from the ASPCA with so

         15  many poignant stories about the many adorable

         16  animals in need of loving human companions.

         17                 In the weeks after the World Trade

         18  Center was attacked, Teddy, a six-pound Yorkie was

         19  found wandering homeless near the site. His back leg

         20  was injured, no one knows how, whether he was hit by

         21  a car, debris or panicked crowds fleeing from the

         22  falling towers.

         23                 Despite attempts to save his leg,

         24  doctors at the ASPCA had to amputate it.

         25                 Teddy survived, and we wanted to
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          2  adopt him. There were not many offers for this

          3  three-legged dog. His handicap did not phase us and

          4  we felt in a small way we could save a victim of

          5  9/11. Our co-op board's house rules prohibited dogs,

          6  but we thought in the aftermath in the World Trade

          7  Center tragedy we could persuade the Board to allow

          8  us to adopt this dog, who lost both an owner and a

          9  leg in the disaster. We were wrong.

         10                 Two days after sending a thoughtful,

         11  reasoned letter to the co-op board, we received a

         12  short and chilly reply from the President of the

         13  Board. "No." And just in case we didn't get the

         14  message, the terse letter ended, "I anticipate that

         15  you will continue to follow house rules as written."

         16  Because of the short turn around from the sending of

         17  the letter to the reply, it was apparent that no

         18  discussion among Board members had ensued. In fact,

         19  when we mentioned out letter to a few Board members,

         20  they didn't even remember it.

         21                 So, the Board does allow cats, it, or

         22  its president, apparently wouldn't even address

         23  amending this policy to harbor a six-pound,

         24  three-legged dog.

         25                 Deeply saddened, we have continued
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          2  fighting for the passage of Intro. 380. This bill

          3  would help end the off times arbitrary and

          4  insensitive decisions of landlords and co-op boards.

          5  This bill would also provide needed and beneficial

          6  companionship for countless seniors and would open

          7  up housing to homeless animals.

          8                 We believe this is right for the

          9  City's citizens, and its homeless and needy animal

         10  population.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12                 MR. MITCHELL: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Fern Wood Mitchell. I am a tenant in what is now

         14  a co-op building, although I've been there for 30

         15  years and continue on as a rent stabilized tenant.

         16                 Madam Chairwoman, I've given you

         17  copies of many of my thoughts here, and I know time

         18  is short. I feel like I'm the posterchild for this

         19  introduction. I'm 63 years old. I live alone. Thanks

         20  to the economy, I'm almost not self-employed, and

         21  tremendously dependent on my 11-year-old boxer dog

         22  for companionship, for emotional support, et cetera.

         23  And as someone else pointed out, there are

         24  surprisingly to me many days that the care and

         25  feeding of that dog is the only thing that gets me
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          2  up, out and going. I've taken responsibility for

          3  this dog and it's the best thing I've ever done, and

          4  what I get back -- just very quickly, Bill, when I

          5  took him in from the CACC was going to be killed the

          6  next day. He was termed to be aggressive and

          7  non-adoptable, I just talked my arm off and took

          8  Bill in. No more than about a year or so later Bill

          9  was licensed as a therapy dog, which shows something

         10  of a turn-around.

         11                 What this City would miss, I think,

         12  by having this type of animal, this opportunity, for

         13  both me and for the animals, you know, to have homes

         14  that could take dogs like this in. I'll recount one

         15  quick story. Bill and I traveled to a rest home in

         16  our neighborhood, when we first began patients to

         17  introduce us to the clientele, a nurses aid went

         18  around with us, and Bill in his fury, not fury,

         19  wrong adjective, anyway, he approached a rather sad

         20  looking woman and started to go at her with his paw,

         21  and the nurse said, oh, don't bother, that poor

         22  woman is deaf, blind and we think mute because she

         23  hasn't spoken in three years.

         24                 I pulled Bill back and said no, no,

         25  no. The woman begged for Bill to come back and play.
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          2                 I turned around, and just as I'm

          3  doing the manly thing now, the entire nurses'

          4  station was balling. She literally had never spoken

          5  for three years, and every week when we went back,

          6  she'd say, "Where's Bill?" And that's what folks

          7  would miss.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          9                 MR. MITCHELL: Thank you.

         10                 MR. ALEXANIAN: I can't follow up a

         11  story like that, that's for sure.

         12                 Garo Alexanian, Companion Animal

         13  Network Television Program.

         14                 Members of the Committee, my fellow

         15  humane advocates, members of the landlord industry,

         16  as Executive Director of Companion Animal Network, I

         17  hold two roles, one on each side of these aisles.

         18  I'm from a third generation family of landlords

         19  whose real estate holding stand two continents,

         20  which at one time included a 200-unit apartment

         21  building on Park Avenue, a 100-unit apartment

         22  building in Forest Hills, and others.

         23                 Being both an animal advocate and

         24  landlord, I may be able to shed some light from both

         25  perspectives.
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          2                 For those who believe that animal

          3  guardian tenants are more likely to cause damage and

          4  create opportunities for legal liabilities, I must

          5  share my family's experience.

          6                 The lack or presence of an animal in

          7  a household has simply not been a precursor for good

          8  tenancy. To the contrary, we have found animal

          9  guardian tenants to be more responsible and

         10  appreciative of relaxed policies pertaining to

         11  companion animals than those who do not possess an

         12  animal.

         13                 Animal guardian tenants have

         14  consistently proven to be more reliable in stability

         15  and on-time rent payments. Yes, once in awhile we

         16  get a bad animal possessing tenant, but that is

         17  rare. A greater percentage of non-animal guardian

         18  tenants turn out to be troublesome.

         19                 The crux of the legislation under

         20  consideration would re-establish the right of an

         21  animal guardian tenant to replace a lost or departed

         22  companion animal, which was previously the norm

         23  under case precedent setting case law.

         24                 Since this ruling was overturned, it

         25  is only fitting that the previous right which was
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          2  granted to tenants who had companion animals be

          3  re-established this time by law.

          4                 This governmental policy is good for

          5  this City's budget, as it reduces animal control

          6  expenses to the tune of approximately $175 per

          7  animal, not dispossessed. $175 is what it cost this

          8  City to process an animal who otherwise would be

          9  surrendered to the City shelter, rather than be

         10  adopted to replace the lost animal of the tenant.

         11                 This proposed law is good for New

         12  Yorker residents' quality of life, as it allows

         13  seniors and others to obtain a medical and

         14  psychological benefits of animal guardianship.

         15                 And, yes, this law is good for

         16  landlords. This country is already divided between

         17  the haves and the have-nots. Those within the

         18  digital community and those outside, those with

         19  family support structures and those without, those

         20  who own their own homes and those who must rent.

         21                 The real estate industry is already

         22  under constant pressure from increasing property

         23  taxes, operational and legal costs, and a reduced

         24  pool of moderately high income tenants. Seeking out

         25  those with companion animals is a progressive way of
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          2  creating stable landlords for animals.

          3                 If the real estate industry takes a

          4  hard line approach, following the footsteps of the

          5  National Rifle Association, it may end up eventually

          6  being relegated to being one of America's most hated

          7  special interest groups.

          8                 Last paragraph. Humans have

          9  benefitted from animals since the dawn of mankind,

         10  and landlords can and do benefit from animals as

         11  well. However, most landlords are simply oblivious

         12  to the advantages animal guardian tenants provide.

         13  This law would entice such landlords to see for

         14  themselves the proven benefits of good animal

         15  guardianship. Humane advocates and organizations

         16  have also been shortsighted, it is their

         17  responsibility as society's animal experts to

         18  operate incentive-based programs for landlords to

         19  participate, from which responsible animal guardian

         20  tenants could be found.

         21                 I call upon the major organizations

         22  of New York City to develop such programs which

         23  would increase the number of animal friendly

         24  apartments.

         25                 This could be done easily and with a
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          2  minimum of investment.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          5                 Doug Halsey, Michael McKee, Livi

          6  French. I'm told there is something like 200 people

          7  in the hallway waiting to bombard us. We'll keep on

          8  going til 1:00.

          9                 MR. HALSEY: Hi. My name is Doug

         10  Halsey, and I'm here representing Animal Friendly

         11  New York, which is an animal welfare political

         12  action group, and I'm also one of those hated co-op

         13  board members.

         14                 In no way would I ever want to deny a

         15  potential shareholder to have to choose between an

         16  apartment and their pets. I, like the previous

         17  landlord, find that people that have pets are

         18  responsible, compassionate, and the types of people

         19  that I want for my neighbors.

         20                 The other thing I wanted to bring up

         21  was that, there seems to be this assumption that the

         22  animals are being proven guilty before they've had a

         23  chance to prove themselves, so I've never

         24  experienced any problems with animals in my

         25  buildings, and it sounds like many other landlords

                                                            142

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  here haven't either.

          3                 The other thing that I wanted to

          4  bring up is that 380 will allow, or rather reduce

          5  the amount of animals that are being put down in

          6  shelters. We call it euthanization but this is

          7  seemingly killing out of convenience, we don't know

          8  what else to do with these animals, and that just is

          9  not acceptable, I don't find. That's pretty much

         10  what I have to say right now. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12  Next.

         13                 MR. McKEE: Good afternoon. My name is

         14  Michael McKee. I'm the Associate Director of the New

         15  York State Tenants and Neighbors Coalition, a

         16  statewide membership organization that advocates and

         17  lobbies for tenants rights and affordable housing.

         18                 I'm here in support of Intro. 380.

         19  This is a necessary bill. It's a good bill. I want

         20  to remind the Council that when the original pet law

         21  was enacted some 20 years ago, it was in response to

         22  a tremendous upsurge in landlord harassment of

         23  tenants and landlords attempting to evict tenants on

         24  any number of grounds, including the fact that they

         25  were violating their no pet clause in their leases,
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          2  and the Council responded to that with a very good

          3  law, and this bill is needed to make sure that the

          4  original intent of the 1983 pet law is maintained.

          5                 We're in a very similar situation

          6  right now, where because of the weakening of the

          7  rent control and rent stabilization laws, and I want

          8  to remind this Council that it was the New York City

          9  Council that enacted permanent vacancy decontrol in

         10  1994, not the State Legislature. Because of that

         11  enactment, and the weakening in the rent laws, there

         12  is now a tremendous incentive on the part of

         13  landlords, if they can get a tenant out on any

         14  grounds, they've got a goldmine, and that makes this

         15  bill even more needed.

         16                 Finally, I would urge you not to

         17  exempt co-ops. It might be that there are some

         18  co-ops that are models of democracy. Our experience

         19  is that many co-op boards are worse than landlords

         20  in terms of their dictatorial policies and their

         21  attempts to have power over other people, whether

         22  shareholders or renters living in the building. And

         23  I think it would be very unjust to exempt them from

         24  this law.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          3                 MS. FRENCH: Livi French, with The

          4  Caring Corps. We're testifying in favor of Intro.

          5  380.

          6                 New York is a City of about 8 million

          7  people and an estimated 1 million owned dogs. Plus

          8  millions more cats and various other house pets.

          9                 We're also a City of rapidly

         10  disappearing housing that allows pets, and pets of

         11  any kind, but particularly dogs. We're talking here

         12  about well-behaved dogs, we're not talking about

         13  strays or dogs that have been trained to be vicious.

         14  These numbers are absurd.

         15                 Intro. 380 is just a basic

         16  commonsense proposal that would allow people whose

         17  pet dies to replace that pet with a new one, without

         18  the threat of being evicted.

         19                 It should be a no-brainer, and if you

         20  look at it in the context of the bigger picture, let

         21  me make these three very brief points:

         22                 Number one, we have good middle-class

         23  people who are leaving New York City and moving to

         24  places like New Jersey and Connecticut and

         25  Westchester, because they cannot find decent
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          2  apartments here that allow them to keep their pets.

          3                 I have friends in Williamsburg,

          4  Brooklyn right now that are packing up their dog and

          5  two cats and moving to New Jersey because they have

          6  no place to stay within the City.

          7                 Number two, similarly, there are good

          8  middle class families in places like Westchester

          9  County, Rockland, Long Island, they would come to

         10  live here in the City, but they're staying where

         11  they are solely because they, too, cannot find

         12  decent housing that will allow them to keep their

         13  pets.

         14                 You know, we're talking about working

         15  middle-class people, New York City's tax base.

         16  We're  losing them.

         17                 Number three, and this is perhaps the

         18  most absurd thing of all, and one or two people

         19  mentioned, and I'll be done in just a minute: New

         20  York City, and that is the Mayor's Office, the City

         21  Health Department and the Center for Animal Care and

         22  Control recently announced their five-year plan to

         23  be a no-kill. And in order to be a no-kill, you've

         24  got to increase adoptions dramatically.

         25                 How do you increase adoptions when
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          2  there is no place to take your new pet home to? It's

          3  absolutely absurd.

          4                 The pet unfriendly housing policy

          5  that we have is diabolical. It's causing the City to

          6  lose its crucial middle class tax base, and it's

          7  causing the lives of tens of thousands of wonderful

          8  pets in need of homes, and I think the passage of

          9  Intro. 380 would be a good beginning.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12                 Next we have Rae Ramsey, Richardson

         13  Cook, Jill Lauri. There is somebody not here. Who is

         14  not here?

         15                 Okay, why don't you start first. Is

         16  the mic on? If the light is out, you are on.

         17                 Okay.

         18                 MS. RAMSEY: My name is Rae Ramsey.

         19  I'm representing myself ostensibly. I'm also

         20  representing many hundreds, and perhaps thousands of

         21  people that feel the same way that I do in New York

         22  City.

         23                 I'm not going to go over some of the

         24  things I wanted to say because they have been said

         25  so eloquently by other people today. One thing I
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          2  want to describe is what's happened to our building.

          3  We moved into our building about 27 years ago, and

          4  it was a rental building. In the last ten to 20

          5  years it's become a co-op, and because someone moved

          6  in with dogs that were not trained, the co-op board

          7  decided to make a no-pet policy, and, so, we are

          8  going through where we have a lot of stabilized

          9  tenants in this building with a co-op.

         10                 What has happened to our building,

         11  which has traditionally been very friendly, and warm

         12  and a trusting building, wonderful relationship with

         13  the staff, it has turned into a very distrusting

         14  building. The staff has been instructed to tell on

         15  anyone that they see that has an animal. Tenants

         16  have been telling on each other, and also owners

         17  have come in with animals or have gotten animals

         18  whereas renters have been evicted.

         19                 So, the building has become very

         20  paranoid because of this situation, and, so, in

         21  listening to people talking about co-op boards, I

         22  feel that when you have a situation where you have a

         23  mixed renter and co-op situation, it becomes very

         24  difficult for the renters, because of course those

         25  apartments are very valuable to the co-op.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          4                 MS. LAURI: Is it on?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

          6                 MS. LAURI: My name is Jill Lauri. I'm

          7  a social worker and a psychotherapist, and I'm here

          8  to speak in favor of Intro. 380.

          9                 We've heard a lot today about the

         10  significance of the relationships between people and

         11  their animal companions, and I think it's very much,

         12  this whole issue is a lot more than a landlord

         13  tenant issue, I think it's really about compassion.

         14  And I think people have been describing it in a lot

         15  of different ways today, but I can't recall anyone

         16  actually using that word. And I think it's about

         17  compassion for animals, there are thousands who are

         18  in need of homes, and it's also about compassion for

         19  ourselves as people.

         20                 We live in a very stressful tentative

         21  kind of society and I think having animals in our

         22  lives, part of our lives, adds and enriches our

         23  lives.

         24                 I do a lot of work with people who

         25  are grieving the loss of animals, and I can share
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          2  with you that people sometimes are incredibly amazed

          3  at how impacted they are by the loss and how

          4  meaningful these relationships are to them.

          5                 And it's interesting because there's

          6  a real schism. On one hand, people value these

          7  relationships and love these animals, and at the

          8  same time there's a certain embarrassment about it.

          9  They think they should be over it, they think they

         10  shouldn't be feeling that. And there's the same

         11  schism in the law right now, as well, that we as

         12  people love our animals, we value them, they're part

         13  of our family, and, yet, the law does not honor

         14  that.

         15                 So, what I'm requesting here today is

         16  that you support and pass Intro. 380, that we can

         17  really honor who we are and relationships that we

         18  value. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         20  Kind of a nice note to end on.

         21                 We've been joined by Council Member

         22  Robert Jackson, who is a member of this Committee,

         23  and he is also Chair of the Committee that's

         24  following us.

         25                 What I'm going to do is, we still
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          2  have this many people to testify, I'm going to read

          3  out the names so that they'll go into the record,

          4  and if any of you have testimony, you can leave it

          5  with us, and I'm sure there will be another hearing,

          6  and at that point, you know, hopefully you'll come

          7  back to us. I regret that we can't continue. I would

          8  be perfectly willing to do so, but there is another

          9  Committee.

         10                 You can go, the Sergeant-At-Arms,

         11  they will collect the testimony.

         12                 Let me read out these names. Carol

         13  Moon. Just kind of wave your hand if you're here.

         14  Okay. Gail North. She's been sitting there all

         15  morning. Cheryl Lasky. Catherine Beason. Elaine

         16  Kirschenblatt. Maureen Moore. Adele Bender. Gary

         17  Kaskel. Lissette Estrella.

         18                 Now. The names that I read, I assume,

         19  maybe not correctly, but you're all in favor of

         20  Intro. No. 380?

         21                 IN UNISON: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. That

         23  will be in the record. And again, I apologize. I

         24  thought that this hearing would be longer. I've had

         25  seven-hour hearings, so it would have been fine.
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          2                 Intro. No. 380 will be laid over, and

          3  I'm sure we'll see you all at the second hearing.

          4                 Thank you all for coming.

          5                 This hearing is adjourned.

          6                 (The following written testimony was

          7  read into the record.)

          8

          9

         10  Written Testimony Of:

         11  Elizabeth Forel

         12  The Coalition for New York City Animals, Inc.

         13  PO Box 20247

         14  New York, NY 10025

         15  (212) 865-0561

         16

         17                 Intro 380 only applies to those

         18  people who live in housing where a no-pet clause has

         19  been waived. It also refers to seniors. While better

         20  than nothing, this represents a very small number of

         21  tenants. The majority of people in this city, with

         22  its notoriously low vacancy rate, live in housing

         23  that prohibits companion animals. Many are forced to

         24  choose between a place to live and their beloved

         25  animals who often go to animal control where they
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          2  are euthanized. In a civilized society, no one

          3  should be forced to do that.

          4                 Last year, according to statistics

          5  from the Department of Health, the Center for Animal

          6  Care and Control euthanized almost 32,000 cats and

          7  dogs. This is a tragedy. If more landlords had

          8  opened up their apartments to companion animals,

          9  this number could have been much lower. The Humane

         10  Society of the United States reports that 35 percent

         11  of people without pets would have one if their

         12  rental housing permitted animals.

         13                 After almost ten years, New York City

         14  finally has a new executive director of Animal Care

         15  & Control who has the support of the community. Ed

         16  Boks is a well-respected shelter executive with a

         17  national reputation who is credited with lowering

         18  euthanasia rates and increasing adoptions in

         19  Maricopa County, AZ. Let's give him the tools to

         20  work with here.

         21                 Please pass this much needed bill -

         22  it is not even adequate for the massive number of

         23  animals who need homes in NYC - by it is better than

         24  nothing.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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